

Timberlane Regional High School

Staff Handbook

2016 - 17 School Year

SAU 55 2016 - 2017

Staff Handbook

Table of Contents

Introduction & Mission Statement	3
Absences	6
Accidents	7
Accountability – Classroom	8
Announcements	. 10
Assemblies	. 10
Assessment of Students	. 11
Chain of Command	. 12
Controversial Issues	. 12
Counseling Services	. 14
Dress Code	. 15
Ethics	. 16
Field Trips	. 17
Fire Drills	. 18
Grading System	. 19
Health Concerns	. 22
Out of School Instruction	. 24
Homework	. 25
Independent Study	. 26
Inventory	. 28
Job Description – Classroom Teacher	. 29
Keys	. 31
Leave of Absence	. 32
Leaving School	. 32
Loan of School Equipment	
Media Center and Library Materials	. 34
New Media Relations	. 35
Non-Discrimination	. 36

Staff Handbook

Professional Development and Evaluation
School Cancellation
School Records
School Referral Process
School Safety and Violence Prevention
School Solicitations
Social Networking
Staff Meetings 60
Staff Recruitment and Selection
Staff Reimbursement for Courses
Student Records
Students Pass System
Study Hall Guidelines
Teacher Records
Textbook Accountability
Turnitin Guidelines
Unacceptable Behavior
Work Rules and Expectations
Appendix A- School Schedule 2016-201773
Appendix B – Bell Schedule 2016-2017
Appendix C – Delayed Opening Bell Schedule74
Appendix D – School Counselor Assignments 2016-2017
Appendix E – Emergency Evacuation Routes
Appendix F – Progressive Discipline Plan
Appendix G – Timeline for Grades 2016-2017
Appendix H – Scheduled Meeting Dates
Appendix I – Emergency Procedures
Appendix J – Academic Protocol for Concussed Students

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

Introduction & Welcome

To Our Colleagues:

The Staff Handbook's topics are arranged alphabetically for easy reference. They cover your professional duties and responsibilities in the classroom and building and outline how to handle other tasks and situations that may arise during the school year.

Since policies may change and procedures evolve over time, returning teachers as well as those new to the school and the district should review the handbook prior to the start of the school year.

The greatest asset of an institution such as ours is the knowledge, competence, and commitment of its classroom teachers. The information here can and will add to the skill and experience you share with your students daily.

We look forward to working with you to make our school a successful and fulfilling learning environment.

Sincerely,

TRHS Administrators

Staff Handbook

Timberlane Regional High School Statement of Core Values, Beliefs, and 21st Century Learning Expectations

Mission Statement

The Timberlane Regional High School community values and nurtures the academic, personal, creative, and social growth of all students. We uphold rigorous academic standards and promote continuous improvement through curriculum and experiences that foster excellence, cooperation, and responsibility.

Core Values

- Academic rigor
- Communication
- Community
- Creativity
- Critical Thinking
- Respect
- Responsibility

Beliefs

- All students have the ability to learn.
- Social interactions, interpersonal relations, and communication with others influence learning.
- Motivation determines, directs, and sustains what students do to learn.
- Personalized instruction and educational opportunities honor students' interests, curiosity, strengths, and contributions.
- Open communication and collaboration among staff, students, parents, and community stakeholders ensure a supportive educational environment.
- Students must learn and apply 21st century skills, such as critical thinking, problem solving, communication, and collaboration.
- Exposure to relevant and challenging curricula fosters lifelong learning through real-life application of knowledge and skills.
- Technology is a tool to support and enhance learning and skill development.

Staff Handbook

21st Learning Expectations

Academic

Timberlane students will:

- Read and apply information from a variety of texts.
- Research and gather information effectively.
- Use critical thinking and problem-solving strategies effectively.
- Write effectively for a variety of purposes and audiences.

Social and Civic

Timberlane students will:

- Offer their best effort and be involved, contributing citizens at school and in the wider community.
- Work cooperatively and resolve conflicts peacefully.
- Live responsibly and lend a helping hand to those in need.
- Speak and act respectfully toward all.

Staff Handbook

Absences

TRHS Procedure

When a teacher is unable to attend school due to illness, approved personal days, approved conferences, travel or workshops, he/she must follow the protocol outlined below;

- 1. Call or log in to AESOP and schedule substitute coverage if required; while also uploading lesson plans to AESOP request. Please include parking spot # in AESOP for the substitute.
- 2. Notify their academic dean at the earliest possible time.
- 3. Send lesson plans to academic dean and administrative assistants in the AP office.
- 4. Update their Webclock as needed.

Each faculty member is responsible for obtaining the phone number and/or email address of his/her academic dean, so that he/she will be able to contact the dean in a timely fashion when an illness or emergency arises.

It is the responsibility of the teacher to have available general plans for three days including:

- 1. Class list for each of your classes
- 2. Lesson plans for each of your classes
- 3. Needed instructional materials for your substitute
- 4. Your daily schedule, including duties, etc.

These folders should be reviewed monthly to bring lesson plans, class rosters and duties up-to-date.

If it is not possible to secure a substitute, then the academic dean will make arrangements with the designated assistant principal's secretary for classes to be covered internally. Teachers may be asked to substitute for a class during a student contract period. As a last resort, a teacher may be asked to substitute for a class during a planning period.

Absences with pay will be allowed by the Superintendent for worthwhile education experiences or trips involving school business. The building principal and the Superintendent's advance approval are required for such absences.

Absences other than those described above will not be allowed with pay.

A deduction will be made for each day of absence either at the rate of 1/187 or 1/188 of the teacher's salary or at the rate of the substitute's pay, at the discretion of the Superintendent. Teachers accompanying students on field trips or otherwise acting in normal teaching capacity will not be considered absent.

Staff Handbook

Accidents

TRSB Policy EBBB

In case of accident/injury/incident, the responsible party (supervising adult) must fill out an accident/injury/incident form the day of any accident/injury/incident that involves the student, staff, or visitor.

The procedures for accidents/injuries/incidents and accident/injury/incident reporting are to be reviewed at the start of each school year by the Principals and the staffs of each school.

All accidents/injuries/incidents judged to be other than minor require an accident/injury/incident report to be filled out by the responsible party (supervising adult) and filed with the Principal and the School Nurse within 24 hours of the accident/injury/incident. If the accident/injury/incident involves the services of a physician and/or is likely to result in an insurance claim, a copy of said report will be forwarded to the TRSD Business Administrator. If the accident/injury/incident is not one involving a physician's care and is unlikely to be an insurance case, it will be sufficient to prepare one copy to be filed with the School Nurse. In all cases in which the School Nurse provides the care, documentation will be made on the individual student's health record.

If the accident/injury/incident is one involving the use of an Automated External Defibrillator (AED), the School Nurse, or his/her designee, shall report all instances of the AED use with the New Hampshire Department of Safety. See incident report forms at

www.state.nh.us/safety/ems/aed public registry packet.pdf

Staff Handbook

Accountability - Classroom

TRHS Procedure

All staff members have a responsibility to become familiar with and to abide by the laws of the State of New Hampshire as these affect their work.

- 1. Each teacher is responsible for maintaining a well-managed classroom characterized by a safe and respectful environment.
- 2. Each teacher is held fully accountable for his/her classroom. It should reflect that school is a place where learning takes place.
 - Students observed marking on and otherwise abusing furniture should be reported to an assistant principal.
 - Bulletin boards are to be kept up-to-date, orderly, and attractive.
 - Desks and chairs are to be kept in the best possible condition and free of pencil and ink messages.
 - Instructional boards are to be cleaned at the end of each day.
 - Debris is to be picked up at the end of each class.
 - Lights are to be off and doors are to be locked when classes are not in session during the day. This also holds true for the end of the day.
 - Windows and doors are to be closed and locked before leaving for the day.
 - Classrooms should be free of unsightly clutter and outdated student projects.

Each teacher will keep an accurate, up to date record of student performance/grades that is easily understandable to parents, counselors and administrators. This record must be updated at a minimum of <u>once a week</u> in PowerSchool. Make sure grades scales are set to ROUNDED (not truncated)

- 3. Each teacher will keep an accurate, up to date record of daily class attendance in PowerSchool. Attendance must be submitted no later than 2:15 PM each day.
- 4. Teachers will follow tardy procedure as outlined in the Progressive Discipline Plan (See Appendix F).

Staff Handbook

Accountability - Classroom (Continued)

- 5. Teachers will hold class for the entire length of every period.
- 6. Teachers are expected to provide as much supplementary work as needed to provide a quality opportunity for students to learn.
- 7. Teachers will be held accountable for every student on their original class list as provided at the opening day of school. Add and drop procedures will be discussed by the Guidance Department.
- 8. All tardies and absences must be recorded daily so that parents and administrators can address these matters in a timely fashion.
- 9. All work that is assigned in an individual teacher's classroom is the direct responsibility of that teacher. It is important that this work fits within the curriculum guidelines developed by the individual department in cooperation with the school administration.
- 10. Teachers should initiate and respond to communication with parents in a timely fashion.
- 11. Students should be given a reasonable amount of time to make up work missed for an excused/exempt absence. It is a shared responsibility for the teacher and student to establish a time line to make up missed work. This time line should be established within 24 hours of a student's return to class.
- 12. Emergency drill procedures and the building mission statement and expectations should be posted in all classrooms.

Staff Handbook

Announcements

TRHS Procedure

The public address system is used on a limited basis during the school day to keep interruptions of class time to a minimum.

Announcements over the public address system are made **once a day** (9:02 a.m.). If a staff member wishes to have this type of announcement made, he/she must prepare the announcement form and submit it to the main office. Announcement may be submitted by no later than 7:30 am of the day the announcement is to be read.

Assemblies

TRHS Procedure

Occasionally during the school year there is a need to have assemblies. These are conducted in the gym, the Performing Arts Center, or the cafeteria with students sitting in the appropriate areas. Teachers are to accompany their classes to the assembly except during an assigned prep period.

In the event that a teacher has a mixed grade class, if more than 25% of your class is not attending the assembly, the teacher should stay in the classroom with their students. If less than 25% is not attending the assembly, the teacher should make arrangements with other teachers and or administration for coverage.

All faculty members are to be present to supervise when a school-wide assembly is held. All teachers on duty and teachers whose classes are attending the assembly are expected to attend and to supervise. Staff members are requested to sit with the students.

Staff Handbook

Assessment of Students

TRHS Procedure

Teachers should inform students of the factors and criteria used to determine grades in a given subject. This information should be presented in the form of a **course syllabus** to each student within the first week of a course. Syllabi must be approved by the designated academic dean before it is presented to students. Course units and competencies should be noted in all syllabi.

<u>Grades</u> should reflect the quality/level of student performance in regards to course competencies on all types of assessments.

<u>Conduct</u> is not to be used as a direct determining factor in grading. Conduct has a causal effect on achievement. For a teacher to raise or lower a student's grade in achievement strictly on conduct is not justifiable.

<u>Class participation</u> can be a factor in grading. However, a participation grade should not be given so much weight that it clouds the measurement of a student's level of proficiency. Therefore, any class participation grade **must have a rubric** that is related to proficiency regarding the course competencies. This rubric must be shared with the students at the beginning of any marking period. Class participation also cannot account for more than 10% of a student's quarter grade.

Each quarter, an effort grade is to be assigned separate from the student's academic grade.

Effort Grades4 - Excellent3 - Good2 - Fair1 - Poor

It is expected that students will carry out their responsibilities in an honorable fashion. Cheating, plagiarism, unauthorized assistance on an assignment/quiz/test/paper/project, or other forms of academic dishonesty will not be tolerated.

Staff Handbook

Chain of Command

TRHS Procedure

Teacher Academic Dean Assistant Principal Principal Superintendent Timberlane Regional School Board

Controversial Issues

TRHS Procedure

An open-minded, rational examination of issues is essential if students are to be prepared to assume their roles as participating members of a democratic society. Conflict cannot be avoided in public issues.

Students, therefore, must be provided with experiences which analyze issues, identify alternatives, and gather evidence appropriate to the testing of these alternatives.

Choices must always be made regarding the appropriateness of issues to be considered. In theory, we subscribe to the belief that all public issues should be open for study and discussion in the school.

From the wide range of these issues, however, selections must be made as to which issues are most relevant for consideration in any particular classroom. If a teacher is considering any material or speaker which might be considered controversial, a Controversial Material Form must be filled out and signed for approval by the teacher's academic dean and the principal. In addition, alternative materials must be provided at time of approval.

In the final analysis, the teacher will bear primary responsibility for this determination in terms of the best interest of the students involved, always keeping in mind the overall district policies (TRSD policy IMB and IMC).

An issue should be consistent with the experience and maturity level of the student and be of real concern to him/her. The issue should be one which is persistent in society and not merely transitory, and the manner of consideration of the issues should contribute to the development of the student's skill in decision making.

Staff Handbook

Controversial Issues (Continued)

TRHS Procedures

It must be assured that the teacher, by virtue of his/her background and personal point of view, can appropriately handle controversial issues and is able to produce adequate materials for study.

The classroom should not be used to promote partisan politics, sectarian religious views or propaganda of any group; and there should be an insistence that democratic procedures be respected and followed within the discussion of controversial issues.

The classroom cannot be used by private individuals or groups as an exclusive forum for their own special interest, but neither shall students and teachers be deprived of the right to hear responsible presentations of all sides of relevant issues.

In the event that controversial materials are going to be used in a class, such as books, articles, short stories, film, etc, the classroom teacher is responsible for informing the appropriate academic dean and the building principal and also seeing that each student has obtained permission from his/her parent/guardian. An <u>alternative assignment</u> must be provided for students whose parents refuse permission for their children to partake in this particular learning experience.

Staff Handbook

Counseling Services

TRSB Policy IJD

Counseling Services have as objectives, helping each student through school with optimum success: helping young people better understand their strengths and limitations, identifying their interests and planning for and attaining realistic goals. Counselors are concerned with students' current educational program and future goals, vocational plans, personal development, and adjustment to the world around them. It goes without saying that working closely with teachers is implied in this role description and that being of service to teachers is a vital responsibility of the counselors.

Teachers concerned with a student's placement in class or ability to carry a subject load or wondering about weaknesses that may be interfering with success in a course should consult with a counselor. Background information from the student's counselor may enable teachers to deal more effectively with students whose behavior poses a problem in understanding and handling.

Teachers are urged to take the initiative in contacting counselors about students so that case conferences may be arranged with all involved to work out strategies for helping students most effectively.

The school administration believes in preventative action as much as corrective or remedial in our efforts together.

Counselors shall coordinate the school guidance program and involve all staff members in designing and implementing plans to meet three major goals.

1. Personal/Social Development - Students will develop appropriate behaviors for a variety of social settings. Students will develop awareness of self and confidence in their own abilities in order to enhance their career and development.

2. Career Development - Students will develop career options consistent with their interests, abilities and values. Career development includes focus on the four areas of vocation, avocation, family life and citizenship.

3. Educational Development - Students at the high school level and parents will participate in planning their educational experiences so that their education is consistent with their education is consistent with educational requirements and career aspirations.

Within the framework of the consulting and guidance goals, specific student and curricular objectives are being developed. With the areas of counseling and guidance responsibility, the counselor enters into professional relationships with three segments of the school community: students, school personnel parents and guardians.

Staff Handbook

Dress Code

TRSB Policy GBEBA **TRHS Procedure

All staff members are to be neatly groomed and dressed in clothing suitable for the subject of instruction, the work being performed, or the occasion. All staff members shall, when assigned to school or district duty:

- 1. Be physically clean, neat and well groomed;
- 2. Dress in a manner reflecting their assignments;
- 3. Dress in a manner that does not cause damage to district property;
- 4. Dress and be groomed in such a way so as not to cause a health or safety hazard.
- 5. Staff members may not wear the following attire: blue jeans, sweat suits, sneakers, t-shirts, tank tops and shorts. Notwithstanding these prohibited items, the board recognizes that the nature of certain teaching assignments (i.e. Industrial Arts, Art, Physical Education, field trips, etc.) may require exceptions to the above policy and will be dealt with on an individual basis.

If a staff member feels that an exception to this policy would enable him/her to carry out assigned duties more effectively, a request shall be made to the chief school administrator.

As an educational community, staff should be aware of their responsibility to value and nurture the academic, personal, creative and social growth of all students. In establishing a dress code for students, **there is the expectation that staff will model in their dress what is expected from the students (*Please consult the Student Handbook to review the students' Dress Code*).

Staff Handbook

Ethics

TRSB Policy GBEA

All employees of the district are expected to maintain high standards in their conduct both on and off duty. District employees are responsible for providing leadership in the school and community. This responsibility requires the employee to maintain standards of exemplary conduct. To these ends, the board adopts the following statements of standards. District employees will:

- 1. Make the well-being of students the fundamental value of all decision-making and actions.
- 2. Maintain just, courteous, and proper relationships with students, parents, staff members, and others.
- 3. Fulfill job responsibilities with honesty and integrity.
- 4. Direct any criticism of other staff members toward improving the district. Such constructive criticism is to be made directly to the building principal.
- 5. Obey all local, state, and national laws.
- 6. Implement the School Board's policies, administrative rules and regulations.
- 7. Avoid using position for personal gain through political, social, religious, economic, or other influence.
- 8. Maintain the standards and seek to improve the effectiveness of the profession through research and continuing professional development.
- 9. Honor all contracts until fulfillment or release.
- 10. Maintain all privacy and confidentiality standards as required by law.
- 11. Exhibit professional conduct both on and off duty.
- 12. Model the behaviors expected from the students.

Employees are put on notice that this list is not intended to be exhaustive or complete. Employees who fail to abide by the terms of this policy may be non-renewed and/or face discipline up to and including termination. Any action taken regarding an employee's employment with the district will be consistent with all rules, laws, and collective bargaining agreements, if applicable.

Legal References: RSA 189:13, Dismissal of Teacher RSA 189:14-a, Failure to Be Re-nominated or Re-elected RSA 189:14-d, Termination of Employment RSA 189:31, Removal of Teacher NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 511, Denial, Suspension or Revocation of Certified Personnel

Staff Handbook

Field Trips (Both In School and Out of School)

TRHS Procedure

Field trips can be used as an excellent instructional tool. However, it is important that the trip be an integral part of the course outline. Trips are encouraged when properly planned for in the development of the course. The following guidelines apply for all field trips:

- 1. Field trips should be planned for **the middle five weeks in a quarter** with a recommended release time of 8:00 a.m. and a recommended return time of 1:45 p.m. Try to avoid the months of January and February (due to weather conditions) and the last five weeks of the school year.
- 2. Teachers must complete the Educational Field Trip Notice (for both in and out of school) and return it to the Academic Deans *AT LEAST ONE MONTH* before the field trip. The deans will bring it to PLT for administration and Principal approval and then it will be sent to the SAU for final approval.
- 3. It is extremely important that the appropriate dean be notified whenever a field trip is planned.
- 4. Once field trip is approved, call or log in to AESOP and schedule substitute coverage (if required) while also uploading lesson plans to AESOP for day of field trip.
- 5. At least one adult trained in CPR and First Aid must be present on every field trip. Chaperones (hopefully parents) will be used on a ratio of 1 per 15 students.

The teacher must contact the bus company **one month in advance** of the field trip to see if a bus is available and to receive a quote for the trip. They must then secure the necessary forms from the main office for the trip and meet with the appropriate dean for approval to encumber the money for the bus. After the forms have been completed, return the forms to the principal's secretary.

After approval is granted, distribute permission slips to students with an adequate amount of time, at least one week before the trip, to have them signed. Students will not be permitted to go on the trip unless a permission slip has been signed and returned. **Please contact the nurse at least one week in advance to determine if arrangements need to be made for any student needing medication.**

Submit a roster in **alphabetical order** of students going on the trip to the main office and all staff **one week in advance and the day** of the trip. The day of the field trip, make sure every student attending has returned a signed permission slip and **make sure the attendance secretary has a final list of students attending the trip**. If a parent has attached a "no photo" letter please return the letter to the principal.

Any staff member supervising students on an extended trip must have prior approval from the building principal and superintendent of schools. Such trips should not infringe upon the normal school calendar days. School time missed for such trips would require a reduction in salary for the time missed.

Staff Handbook

Fire Drills

TRHS Procedure

Fire drills will be scheduled by the principal during the school year. The purpose of a fire drill is to train students, under staff direction, to move safely, quickly, and quietly from any location within the building to an evacuation area outside the building in the event of a fire or other emergency situation (*See Appendix E*). The following rules and procedures will be followed:

- 1. Rules for fire evacuation are to be posted in each room. These rules will indicate the primary and alternate exits and the evacuation area to which the students should proceed upon leaving the building.
- 2. A distinct fire alarm signal will be used for a fire drill. Another signal will be established by the principal for return to class.
- 3. No person is to remain in the building during fire drills. Materials are to be left in the building and all must exit in a rapid, orderly manner (walking, not running). The staff members should have their class roster with them at all times.
- 4. It is the teacher's responsibility to have students move quickly, quietly, and in an orderly manner through the assigned exit to the assigned evacuation area.
- 5. Evacuation areas will be at least 50 feet (100 feet, if possible) away from the building and out of driveways.
- 6. The teacher will be responsible for:
 - a. Ensuring that all students are evacuated in a safe, orderly manner.
 - b. Taking the emergency backpack (located by exit door).
 - c. Seeing that windows and doors are closed but left unlocked.
 - d. Ensuring that electrical circuits and gas jets are turned off.
 - e. Maintaining order during the evacuation.
 - f. Assigning the first student to evacuate to hold the doors open, and then instructing them to rejoin the class after the last person has passed through the door.
 - g. Taking attendance on the Missing Student Form and getting it immediately to administration.

Staff Handbook

Grading System

TRHS Procedure

Each teacher's grading policy should be fair and consistent in grading students. Grades are meant to reflect a student's level of academic achievement/performance measured against the course competencies/standards.

Each teacher's grading policy must be part of the course syllabus that is given to the designated academic dean prior to distributing it to students. Each teacher must make it clear, in writing, to all students, exactly what system is being used in each class. The percentage weight for each grading category, e.g., tests, quizzes, projects, papers, presentations, etc. should be clearly delineated for students. The homework will be worth up to 10% of a quarter grade. The grading policy should be distributed to all students within the first week of a course after receiving administrative approval. It is suggested that teachers inform their students of their policy on the first day of class (*See Appendix G for Timeline for Grades*).

The Timberlane Regional High School's grading system is as follows:

A + A A -	97 – 100 93 – 96 90 – 92	Effort Grade
B + B B -	87 – 89 83 – 86 80 – 82	3 – Good 2 – Fair 1 – Poor
C + C C -	77 – 79 73 – 76 70 – 72	
D + D D -	67 - 69 63 - 66 60 - 62	
F	0 – 59	

Staff Handbook

Grading System (Continued)

TRHS Procedure

There are four marking quarters. At the end of each quarter, report cards will be issued. Midway in each quarter, there will be an opportunity to issue progress reports to students and parents (*See Appendix G*). The following grading system will be used in accordance with established standards:

- A Denotes work of excellent quality and demonstrates a level of competency and achievement that exceeds a level of proficiency.
- **B** Denotes commendable work that demonstrates proficiency in the subject area related to the course competencies.
- **C** Denotes an acceptable level of quality but one that falls a bit short of proficiency.
- **D** Denotes a quality level below average and ways to go to achieve proficiency. This quality, though passing, would generally be unsatisfactory. A conference involving parents, students and school personnel is suggested to discuss possible causes and improvements.
- **F** Denotes an unsatisfactory level of quality for the requirements in the course. A conference involving parents, students and school personnel is suggested to discuss possible causes and improvements.

Staff Handbook

Grading System (Continued)

TRHS Procedure

In certain instances, special grades are available for use. They include the following:

I - Incomplete

This indicates that as the period has ended, certain work has not been completed, though the teacher expects it quite soon. This is different from an "F" which indicates poor quality or undone work that is long overdue. A teacher must make every attempt to minimize the use of incomplete grades. When a teacher gives an Incomplete, he or she is to notify the student's guidance counselor. All incomplete grades must be changed within two weeks from the end of a marking period. When there are extenuating circumstances, please consult with the student's guidance counselor to determine how to proceed.

M - Medical

This grade is used for Physical Education only. It indicates that the student is medically excused from participating in physical education classes. A written excuse issued by a doctor must be submitted to the school nurse. If a student receives more than one grade of "M", then no final grade is to be given and no credit will be awarded.

N - Audit

The grade is used only when a student is auditing a course and for no other reason. This must be with the approval of the teacher, academic dean, director of guidance, and an assistant principal.

W - Withdrawn

If a student withdraws from a full year course after eight weeks or from a semester course after four weeks, the student will receive an "F" for the final grade with no credit awarded.

Staff Handbook

Health Concerns

TRHS Procedure

Staff is to refer all ill students to the school nurse. If a student says he/she needs to see the nurse, a teacher must release him/her to do so, even if the teacher believes he/she is not ill. The nurse is not easily fooled and must be the one to decide on illness questions.

If a teacher is concerned that a student is experiencing health problems related to alcohol or other drug use while in school, the teacher should refer that student to the assistant principal. Such health related symptoms may include: red/glassy bloodshot eyes, runny nose, nose bleeds, complaints of nausea, lethargic behavior, sleeping in class, staggering gait, dilated pupils and/or slurred speech.

Before referring the student to the assistant principal, a teacher may confidentially take the student aside and inquire about the symptoms that are observed. If, after hearing a student's explanation about his/her condition, the teacher is still concerned about the student, the teacher is to immediately notify the assistant principals' secretaries by email or call the office for an escort.

The teacher or assistant principal should make sure he/she informs the nurse that he/she has escorted the student to her office due to health concerns expressed by the classroom teacher. The assistant principal will notify the school nurse to perform a medical assessment.

Primary responsibility for the overall health of the school child lies with the parent. The school is not legally authorized to diagnose conditions or prescribe medication. This is the function of a physician or other medical facility.

The school is responsible for the welfare of school children during the school day, including handling of sudden illness and accidental injury, but is not responsible for subsequent treatment.

Parents/guardians must be contacted, depending upon the best procedure, before a student will be dismissed to be taken home. In developing a plan for emergency care in the school health program, it is important that legal responsibilities be considered. The school is not responsible for treatment.

Staff Handbook

Health Concerns (Continued)

TRHS Procedure

School policy does not permit school personnel to treat or to prescribe treatment. Even the administration of such a simple remedy as aspirin is considered outside the province of school responsibility. **Under no circumstances are any internal medicines to be given to a student**. Financial arrangements and after-care is not the responsibility of the school. This is the responsibility of the family.

However, school personnel are legally responsible for the general welfare of the student during the school day. The school is responsible for the administration of emergency care. Emergency care is limited to first-aid only. First aid is the immediate care or treatment given to a student in case of injury, illness, or accident, until services of a physician can be obtained. The responsibility for obtaining any further treatment is that of the parent/guardian. An accurate record of all students' treatments shall be kept.

Staff Handbook

Out of School Instruction

TRSB Policy IHBF

Out of school instruction shall be authorized by the Superintendent and/or designee:

1. To any child with a health or physical impairment which, in the opinion of a licensed medical examiner, will cause him/her to be absent from school for more than two consecutive weeks and who school personnel, as authorized by the Superintendent, determine can educationally benefit from such a program.

2. To any child whose educational needs, as determined by a case study and reviewed in a multidisciplinary staff conference, are most appropriately and effectively met by such a program.

3. When applicable, the Academic Concussion Protocol will be followed.

The school administration in collaboration with the school guidance counselor and school nurse will make preliminary arrangements for students to receive out of school instruction whenever the need is determined. When a student is ill with a non-contagious disease or illness under the conditions that would not endanger the health of an instructor or tutor, or when a student has had an accident (broken limb), or an operation, any of which prevents the student from attending school, the services of an instructor or tutor should be arranged as soon as feasible.

For students with disabilities, the provision of New Hampshire Rules for the Education of Children with Disabilities shall apply. For specially designed academic instruction as specified in the student's IEP, special education related services (PT, OT, SLP, etc.) shall be in addition to academic instruction. Out of school instruction will be coordinated through the Director of Student Services.

Staff Handbook

Homework

TRHS Procedure

The school board believes that meaningful homework assignments, to be accomplished outside of the regular classroom, are an integral part of the teaching/learning process when geared to the needs and abilities of students. Independent study is a worthwhile use of time outside of the regular classroom to practice, maintain, complete, make up, or enrich classroom activities. It is also meant to help develop independent study habits and appreciation for the value of learning.

All homework that is assigned should be graded in some fashion. **Homework will be worth up to 10% of all calculated course grades.** Daily assignments can be graded by checks, plus/minus, or numerical grades. Acceptance of late homework assignments, not due to excused absences, is up to the discretion of each teacher and should be clearly defined in the teacher's grading policy.

Long term projects/papers/summative assessments will be accepted late, but on the basis of a reduction of 10 points (on a 100 point scale) for each day late, down to a grade of 50 unless the student's score was below a 50 to begin with. In the latter case, the student's grade shall stand. For example, three students are three days late on their project: student A scores 90; student B scores 65; and student C scores 40. Following this policy, student A's grade will be reduced to a 60; student B's score to a 50; and student C's score will stand at a 40. Regarding long term assignments, students who demonstrate effort and a need for more time should be granted appropriate extra time by the teacher without penalty.

Clearly define work to be completed outside of class, including due dates and grade penalties for late submission. Assign homework on a regular basis and provide instruction in research techniques. When possible, assign homework in advance, permitting students to schedule their own time, including weekends and holidays if they choose.

Follow time guidelines for learning levels and inform parents relative to homework rules. Evaluate all tasks assigned and communicate this to students **in a timely fashion, usually within one week**. Anything worth assigning is worth evaluating.

Staff Handbook

Independent Study

TRHS Procedure

Existing regulations of the State Board of Education requires that a minimum of 135 hours of prepared classroom work be completed before a student can be awarded a unit of academic credit. Therefore, the awarding of ¹/₂ unit of credit for an approved program of independent study necessitates the completion of a minimum of 67.5 hours of prepared work or the equivalent.

Students who can demonstrate competency in an area of study and wish to investigate the topic in greater depth than is available in the general course offerings will be permitted to do so through participation in an approved program.

Independent study credit will not normally be used to satisfy minimum requirements for graduation. It may, however, be used as a sixth course or in cases when a course cannot be scheduled.

In order to complete an independent study application, these rules must be followed:

- 1. The student will attach the material outlined under student's responsibility to the form before submitting it to the assistant principal for approval.
- 2. The student will give the application to his/her faculty advisor. The faculty advisor of the independent study course will attach a page detailing the information requested under the advisor's responsibility before it is submitted for approval.
- 3. Before final approval may be given, the student, the faculty advisor and the student's guidance counselor must meet with the academic dean for that content area and the assistant principal of academics to discuss the independent study course outline. When final approval is given, copies of all parts of the proposal will be given to all parties.

Staff Handbook

Independent Study (Continued)

TRHS Procedure

The Student will:

Select and contact an advisor with expertise in the field of study desired. Demonstrate to the satisfaction of the adviser competency in the area of study desired and prepare a proposal outlining the course of study. This should include:

- 1. Number of contact hours with advisor.
 - a. An outline of the proposed course of study including materials that will be used (texts, readings, etc).
 - b. A description of a final project which may be an original research project or other original work.
 - c. Number of total hours you expect to spend on the independent study.
- 2. Get all required material together, including faculty advisor's recommendations, and present it to your counselor. Make sure the form is completely filled out with your signature, the faculty advisor's signature and your parent's signature before presenting the application to your counselor.

The Faculty Advisors will:

- 1. Specify the nature and frequency of contact: State the number of hours per week you will meet with the student and the number of hours per week you expect the student to work on his/her own.
- 2. State the Method of Evaluation:
 - a. State the starting and ending dates for the independent study and make sure that the independent study course appears on the report card.
 - b. Structure the work in such a way that a grade will be given each quarter. The grading policy will be determined before the independent study begins.
 - c. As soon as it is evident that the work is not being done by the student, a meeting needs to be held to determine possible termination of the contract.

Staff Handbook

Inventory

THSB Policy Fixed Assets (Inventories)

To serve the functions of conservation and control, a running inventory of fixed assets with appraised values will be maintained by the Superintendent's office on buildings and contents including (1) buildings and grounds equipment, (2) furniture, (3) administrative equipment, (4) educational equipment, (5) vehicles, and (6) textbooks and supplementary books. The Superintendent will designate the person responsible for maintaining an inventory of equipment, materials and supplies in his/her shop, laboratory, or classroom.

Each teacher is responsible for maintaining an inventory of equipment, materials and supplies in his/her shop, laboratory, or classroom and will coordinate this inventory with the principal's building inventory. These inventories will be brought up-to-date as needed, but no less than once per fiscal year. Two copies of the inventory will be filed with the building administrator.

TRHS Procedure

A means of identification shall be affixed, placed on, or inscribed on certain equipment which shall consist of a number which shall appear on an inventory form to be maintained by the building principal and the superintendent's office.

Any persons having knowledge of any inappropriately removed or unlawfully taken school properties should immediately notify the building principal or the superintendent's office.

Each academic dean will be responsible for collecting and compiling the inventory of furniture and equipment in his/her department as well as the inventory of department textbooks, resource materials and supplies.

Each teacher will be responsible for classroom furniture and equipment inventory and responsible to the academic dean for textbooks, resource materials and supplies.

Each teacher will be expected to cooperate in the annual department book inventory at the end of the school year. Teachers are responsible for reminding students to return their books at the end of the year. The teacher will work with the library staff to ensure all books are returned. Students will be billed for any books that are not returned.

Staff Handbook

Job Description - Classroom Teacher

TRHS Procedure

The teacher shall be highly qualified in his/her instructional area, competent in facilitating learning for students, and professionally skilled in accumulating, assimilating, and evaluating the knowledge associated with his/her academic field. The teacher is responsible for:

- 1. Establishing yearly goals that reflect a three-year professional development plan.
- 2. Providing the academic dean and the administration with current information regarding his/her accomplishments and professional development.
- 3. Establishing an effectively managed classroom as well as creating a classroom environment characterized by respect and openness while focused on student learning.
- 4. Establishing the necessary procedures for his/her instructional program in accordance with existing policies and regulations.
- 5. Evaluating the effectiveness of his/her instructional program for continuous improvement.
- 6. Attending all scheduled department and staff meetings. If this is physically impossible, the teacher is to notify the academic dean and the principal for approval.
- 7. Requesting approval to attend conferences and conventions and initiating the paper work.
- 8. Participating cooperatively with administrators in the teacher evaluation program.
- 9. Maintaining open communication with parents, community agencies and organizations.
- 10. Initiating appropriate press releases and submitting them to the principal for approval.
- 11. Taking advantage of such community resources as appropriate for the educational goals of the school with the approval of his/her principal.
- 12. Maintaining accurate and up-to-date records on students, including: grades, class attendance, discipline, and pertinent physical and mental health data.
- 13. Keeping his/her teaching certification current.

Staff Handbook

Job Description - Classroom Teacher (Continued)

TRHS Procedure

- 14. Complying with all expectations related to the District PD and Evaluation Plan.
- 15. Initiating all budget requests through the academic dean and principal or designee.
- 16. Carrying out all duties assigned by the administration.
- 17. Taking an active part in staff development and collaborating with colleagues in professional learning communities to improve student learning.
- 18. Maintaining an up-to-date plan book with requisite components (Standards/Competencies, Learning Objective, Instructional Strategies, Planned Assessments/Assignments).
- 19. Taking part in communications among all members of the management structure, including the school board, while observing the chain of command.
- 20. Expressing a voice in the school community to help to develop, organize, administer and explain the education program for the school.
- 21. Helping to develop the curriculum within his/her teaching area and suggesting ways of integrating this curriculum with other departments where feasible
- 22. Reviewing the material in the teacher and student handbooks and school board policy manual and adhering to all pertinent information and directives therein.
- 23. Seeking permission from the principal when it is necessary to leave the building during the day. A teacher leaving the building, with permission, must sign out in the mail room.
- 24. Maintaining a professional, ethical relationship with students, parents, colleagues, and the public.
- 25. Reporting all instances of bullying, hazing, or harassment to the administration, as well as, all instances of student abuse or neglect to the proper authorities (Department of Youth and Families, 603-894-5533 Guidance Counselors can assist teachers in this responsibility).
- 26. Reading all IEPs and 504 Plans and complying with all directives and required accommodations therein.

Staff Handbook

Keys

TRHS Procedure

All staff members are entitled to receive appropriate keys/swipe cards to areas of the building. The principal's secretary should be contacted at the beginning of the school year to obtain appropriate keys/swipe cards. Keys/Swipes must be returned at the end of the school year. All staff members must sign keys in and out with the principal's secretary. *Do not lose keys/Swipe Cards!*

Great care is taken in the matter of keys. If a major school issued key (a master to external doors, etc.) is lost, thus requiring a re-keying of locks, the expense of this re-keying will be billed to the staff member. This can run into hundreds of dollars.

Keys to an external door will be issued only to teachers with a good reason to get into the building at odd times and only with the approval of the principal.

NOTE: Keys should not be left on a teacher's desk, in the lock, or otherwise unattended and out of control and possession, even for a few seconds/minutes. **Keys should never be lent to students.**

Staff Handbook

Leave of Absence

TRSB Policy GCCBA

Leaves of absence without pay may be granted for reasons of health, maternity, professional advancement or other reasons of personal security when it can be assured that positions for which the absentee is qualified shall exist upon completion of the leave. Military leave will be granted in accordance with the Selective Service Law. Benefits accumulated at the time of commencement of leave shall not be lost, but no new benefits shall be accumulated during the period of absence. Leaves shall not be granted for periods in excess of one year. Confirmation of intent to return in September must be filed with the Superintendent of Schools not later than the previous April 1st. Staff is expected to serve on jury when called, without loss or gain of salary and benefits. Granting of these leaves shall be at the sole discretion of the Superintendent or designee.

Leaving Building and/or School Property

TRHS Procedure

No teacher is to take it upon him/her to leave the building during the day without getting permission from his/her academic dean first, and then, one of the principals.

When a teacher leaves the building, with permission, the teacher must sign out and sign in upon return in the log located within the Mail Room. Teachers are expected to be present, in the building, from **7:10 am** to **2:25 pm** daily.

Staff Handbook

Loan of School Equipment

TRSB Policy EDC- Authorized Use of School Owned Materials

No school equipment may be used for other than school, school related, civic, or educational purposes. The Board shall permit school equipment to be loaned to staff members when such use is related to their employment and to students when the equipment is to be used in connection with their studies or extracurricular activities. A written agreement should be used, which specifies the borrower's responsibility to return the equipment in the condition in which it is received, and his/her financial responsibility for any loss or damaged which will meet the requirements of all applicable insurance.

TRHS Procedure

School equipment, including audio-visual equipment, must remain in the building at all times. School equipment can be loaned to individual teachers only with express permission of the principal. **Copy** machines in the building are not to be used by students.

Audio visual equipment is available, as needed, from the media specialists. Teachers need to make their needs known to the media specialists as far in advance as possible to help ensure the needed equipment can be provided.

A form for reserving equipment is available in the media center. Some equipment will be issued to departments at the beginning of the year, and teachers should familiarize themselves with this equipment.

Teachers are responsible for the technology that is housed or used in their rooms. This includes computers, desktops, COWS, laptops, chrome books etc. Teachers are responsible for checking over their technology on a regular basis and reporting any damaged equipment in their room. To report damaged technology, fill out an IT Request form and send it to the technology office.

Staff Handbook

Master Schedule Changes

TRHS Procedure

A change in course structure, classroom assignments or in assignment of students to sections is not authorized without prior communication with and approval by the assistant principal of student services.

Teachers alone cannot assume the prerogative of changing the master schedule of the school. Changes in schedules are often made, but these are very important changes and must involve guidance and the administration.

If a teacher wishes to have a change made, consultation with guidance and/or the administration is the first step. Unnecessary confusion and extra work are the most common results when a teacher attempts to change a student's schedule, his/her own teaching schedule, or the scheduling or assignment of a classroom, on his or her own.

No master schedule changes can be made without prior consultation and approval by the assigned assistant principal of student services.

Media Center and Library Materials

TRHS Procedure

The goals of the media center are to provide a balanced collection of education materials, to teach students proper research procedures, and to encourage leisure reading. Please make maximum use of all media center facilities and encourage students to do the same.

Before a teacher schedules the use of any media center facilities for resource-based research, the teacher and the media specialist meet to plan instructional strategies and identify resources. Teachers should schedule a meeting with a media specialist and media center research time as far in advance as possible.

The media center is a quiet area designed for research and reading; it is not a Study Hall. Students must obtain a media center pass for access from their study halls. Those students who do not respect the rights of others will not be welcome. Please cooperate in maintaining this quiet area.

Audio-visual equipment must be signed out from the media center and returned after use. Broken equipment must be labeled and returned to the media center for repair. All audio-visual material purchases are to be coordinated with the media specialist, who will arrange for previews and purchasing of materials to support the curriculum.

Staff Handbook

New Media Relations

TRSB Policy KDD

The Timberlane School Board encourages a policy of sound relations with the press and other communication media in the community and surrounding geographical area. The Superintendent shall plan for periodic releases to the press and other communication media which will provide information to the community concerning its schools and various phases of the school program.

Unless directed otherwise, all news releases related to the school and school activities will be the responsibility of the building Principal.

TRHS Procedure

The high school publishes many press releases throughout the school year. Press releases are important to the high school's public relations program. If a teacher would like to post information on the school website, the TEN Network, Twitter or in the Principal's Newsletter, he or she should meet with an assistant principal.

Should teachers desire to release a news item for publication, they should seek approval to do so through their academic dean who will in turn submit it to the Principal. All press releases must be signed by the Principal.

Please make a conscious effort to let those on the outside know what is going on. Good public relations are everyone's responsibility and in an era of accountability news items of general interest to the public take on greater significance.
Staff Handbook

Non-Discrimination

TRSB Policy AC Non- Discrimination/ Equal Opportunity

Discrimination against and harassment of school employees because of age, sex, race, creed, color, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation are prohibited. Discrimination against and harassment of students because of sex, race, creed, color, age, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation are prohibited.

The Board directs the school administration to implement a continuing program designed to prevent discrimination against all applicants, employees, students and individuals with disabilities having access rights to school premises and activities.

The District will designate a Nondiscrimination Officer who will be responsible for ensuring compliance with all federal and state requirements relating to nondiscrimination. The Nondiscrimination Officer will be a person with direct access to the Superintendent. The Board directs the administration to implement internal complaint procedures for resolving complaints of discrimination under this policy and to provide adequate notice of the availability of such complaint procedures. The Board directs the administration to provide notice of compliance with federal and state civil rights laws to all applicants for employment, employees, students, parents, and other interested persons, as appropriate. The District will require all persons, agencies, vendors, contractors, and other persons and organizations doing business with or performing services for the District to subscribe to all applicable federal and state laws pertaining to contract compliance.

The board encourages its staff to improve human relations within the schools, and to establish channels through which citizens can communicate their concerns to the administration and the board.

Staff Handbook

Non-Discrimination (continued)

The superintendent of schools has been designated to handle inquiries regarding the non-discrimination policy:

Dr. Earl Metzler, Superintendent SAU No. 55 30 Greenough Road Plaistow, New Hampshire 03865

Inquiries concerning the application of non-discrimination policies may also be referred to the following:

Regional Director, Office for Civil Rights U.S. Department of Education J. W. McCormack, POCH, Room 222 Boston, Massachusetts 02109-4557

Legal References:

Equal Employment Opportunities Act of 1972 (42 U.S.C. § 2000(e) et seq.) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352). Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq.) Equal Pay Act of 1963 (29 U.S.C. § 206). Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.); 34 CFR § 104.7, as amended. Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.), as amended. NH RSA 186:11; 354-A:7, as amended. NH Code Admin. R. Ed. 303.01

Staff Handbook

TRSD Policy ACAB- R

Employee Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Procedure

This procedure has been established by the Timberlane Regional School District in order to provide a method of prompt and equitable resolution of employee complaints of discrimination and harassment as described in policies AC – Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity and ACAB – Harassment and Sexual Harassment of School Employees.

Definitions

For purposes of this procedure:

A. "Complaint" is defined as an allegation that an employee has been discriminated against or harassed on the basis of age, sex, race, creed, color, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation.

B. "Discrimination or harassment" means discrimination or harassment on the basis of age, sex, race, creed, color, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation.

How to Make a Complaint

A. Any employee who believes he/she has been harassed or discriminated against is encouraged to try to resolve the problem by informing the individual(s) that the behavior is unwelcome or offensive and by requesting that the behavior stop. This shall not prevent the employee, however, from making an immediate formal complaint.

B. Any employee who believes he/she has been harassed or discriminated against should report their concern promptly to the building principal. If the employee is uncomfortable reporting concerns to the building principal, he/she may report the concern to assistant principal or principal's designee. The report should be made in writing.

Employees who are unsure as to whether unlawful discrimination or harassment has occurred are encouraged to discuss their concerns with the building principal. Employees will not be retaliated against for reporting suspected discrimination or harassment.

C. Any employee who believes he/she has been discriminated against or harassed is encouraged to utilize the District's complaint procedure. However, employees are hereby notified that they also have the right to report incidents of discrimination or harassment to the New Hampshire Commission on Human Rights, 2 Chenelle Drive, Concord, NH 03301-8501 (telephone: 603-271-2767) and/or to the federal Office for Civil Rights, Regional Director, U.S. Department of Education, S.W. McCormack POCH Room 222, Boston, MA 02109-4557 (telephone: 617-223-9662).

Staff Handbook

Non-Discrimination (continued)

Complaint Handling and Investigation

A. The building principal will promptly inform the Superintendent and the person who is the subject of the complaint that a complaint has been received.

B. The building principal may pursue an informal resolution of the complaint with the agreement of the parties involved. The informal resolution is subject to the approval of the Superintendent who shall consider whether the resolution is in the best interest of the district in light of the particular circumstances and applicable policies and law.

C. The complaint will be investigated by the building principal, unless the Superintendent chooses to investigate the complaint or designates another person to investigate it on his/her behalf. Any complaint about an employee who holds a supervisory position shall be investigated by a person who is not subject to that supervisor's authority. Any complaint about the Superintendent should be submitted to the Chair of the Board, who should consult with legal counsel concerning the handling and investigation of the complaint.

1. The person who is the subject of the complaint will be provided with an opportunity to be heard as part of the investigation.

2. If the complaint is against an employee of the District, any rights conferred under an applicable collective bargaining agreement shall be applied.

3. Privacy rights of all parties to the complaint shall be maintained in accordance with applicable state and federal laws.

4. The building principal shall keep a written record of the investigation process.

5. The building principal may take interim remedial measures (consistent with any applicable collective bargaining agreement provisions) to reduce the risk of further discrimination or harassment while the investigation is pending.

6. The building principal shall consult with the Superintendent concerning the investigation, conclusions, and any remedial and/or disciplinary actions.

7. The investigation shall be completed within 21 school days of receiving the complaint, if practicable.

Staff Handbook

Non-Discrimination (continued)

D. If the building principal determines that discrimination or harassment occurred, he/she shall, in consultation with the Superintendent:

1. Determine what remedial action is required, if any;

2. Determine what disciplinary action should be taken against the person(s) who engaged in discrimination or harassment, if any; and

3. Inform the employee who made the complaint in writing of the results of the investigation and its resolution (in accordance with applicable state and federal privacy laws).

E. If the employee who made the complaint is dissatisfied with the resolution, he/she may appeal to the Superintendent within 10 school days after receiving notice of the resolution unless the Superintendent investigated the original complaint as provided for under Paragraph C. The Superintendent shall review the investigation report and may conduct further investigation if deemed appropriate. The Superintendent's decision shall be final.

Legal Reference:

Americans with Disabilities Act (28 CFR § 35.07) Section 504 of the Vocational Rehabilitation Act (29 U.S.C. § 794); 34 CFR § 104.7 Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972 (34 CFR § 106.8(b)) Age Discrimination in Employment Act (34 CFR § 110.25) NH Code Admin. R. Ed. 303.01(i) and (j) **Cross Reference**: AC – Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity ACAB – Harassment and Sexual Harassment of School Employees

Staff Handbook

Professional Development and Evaluation

TRHS Procedure

While the State of New Hampshire has specific requirements governing certification and our district has parallel policies regarding conditions of employment, the primary responsibility for complying with those requirements and policies is the teacher's.

In the Timberlane Regional School District, professional development and faculty evaluation are regarded as co-equal parts of the overall process of an individual's growth and evolution as an educator. Each teacher is assigned an evaluator, who is responsible for overseeing and periodically assessing the teacher's professional performance.

Evaluation is carried out over a three-year cycle, designed to coincide with the individual teacher's cycle of certification. At the start of the cycle, the teacher is expected to complete a self-assessment and prepare both a set of goals/SLO and an individual professional development plan for meeting those goals over the course of the three years. At the end of a cycle, the teacher is expected to complete a summative self-assessment of his/her professional growth during the 3 year cycle.

The goals/ SLO's and plan are approved by the teacher's evaluator, who meets with the teacher to review progress at intervals during the cycle. Teachers who are new to the district or in their first three years of employment in the district follow a more prescribed set of goals and process of evaluation than those on continuing contract. If a teacher begins employment in the midst of his/her certification cycle, a modified plan is developed, which takes into account professional development activities already completed.

The District Professional Development Plan explains in detail both State certification requirements and the district's own policies and procedures, including a variety of activities which may be used for professional development and certification credit. A copy of the plan is given to each incoming teacher. Any teacher who may have further questions or concerns should contact one of the building representatives of the Professional Development Committee.

Staff Handbook

School Cancellation

TRHS Procedure

The superintendent makes the decision when it becomes necessary to cancel school due to inclement weather or hazardous driving conditions.

Announcements are made first through the Superintendent's Twitter Account: <u>https://twitter.com/suptsau55</u>

Also through the following stations:

- WBZ Boston
- WCRZ Portsmouth
- WMUR Manchester
- WZID Manchester

In most instances, an automated phone message will be sent out to all staff members. However, a fall back measure is also in place. A telephone list, prepared and distributed each year by the principal's secretary, will be used on these occasions to ensure that all teachers are reached by telephone by 6:30am. This telephone list is referred to as the "**snow call list**."

If an automated phone message is not received, it is most important that all personnel make the calls assigned to them so that everyone will receive adequate notice. Please note that when an assigned person cannot be reached, it is the caller's responsibility to contact those who were assigned to that person who could not be reached.

*****Online Learning/Blizzard Bag**

In the event an Online Learning/Blizzard Bag day is called, staff members must be prepared to actively participate in the day. This includes all classroom teachers posting an assignment on the school's google site by 9:00 A.M on the morning of the Online Learning/Blizzard Bag day. In addition teachers must be available online for 4 hours between 10 A.M and 4:00 P.M. for student support. All staff will be asked to fill out an online form on how they participated in the day. Notification of an Online Learning/Blizzard Bag day will be on the automated phone message as well as posted on the district website.

In the event the district foresees an upcoming snow day and possibly an Online Learning/Blizzard Bag day, administration will be sending out the most up to date information.

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

School Records

TRHS Procedure

A teacher at Timberlane Regional High School must maintain three types of records. They include attendance, grades, and a plan book. Attendance and grades are kept through PowerSchool.

Attendance

A teacher is required to take attendance daily and to correct a student's attendance when needed. Attendance is taken through PowerSchool/Grade.

Grades

Teachers are to keep a record of student grades on the school's electronic PowerSchool system. These records **must be updated at a <u>minimum of once a week</u>** to provide an accurate measurement of students' academic performance, which, in turn, can readily be communicated to students and parents/guardians. **Grades should fairly reflect the quality/level of student performance regarding course competencies on all types of assessments.**

At the mid-quarter progress report times, end of each quarter, and end of the course, teachers must make sure that a grade for each student has been recorded.

Plan Book or Electronic Portfolio

Teachers will maintain a plan book or electronic portfolio and keep it up to date. An outline of the unit of work to be covered and a few pertinent remarks about the lesson will be extremely helpful should it be necessary to obtain a substitute. **Daily lesson plans need to include:**

- A referenced course standard/competency.
- A specific learning objective.
- Student- centered instructional strategies.
- Planned assessments or assignments.

Because planning is an integral part of the teacher evaluation process, the plan book or electronic portfolio may be reviewed biweekly by an administrative evaluator. It should be readily accessible at all times during the school day.

Staff Handbook

School Referral Process

TRSB Policies JLF

Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect

Any school employee having reason to suspect that a child is being or has been abused or neglected shall immediately report his/her suspicions to the building principal or designee. The principal or designee shall then notify the appropriate state officials at the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services. The principal or designee will then notify the superintendent or designee that such a report to Health and Human Services has been made.

A written report shall be made by the principal or designee within 24 hours. The report should contain the name and address of the child suspected of being abused or neglected, the person responsible for the child's welfare, the specific information indicating the neglect/abuse or the nature and extend of the child's injuries (including any evidence of previous injuries), the identity of the person or persons suspected of being responsible for such neglect or abuse, and any other information that might be helpful in establishing neglect or abuse or that may be required by the Department of Health and Human Services.

The Board requires all school district employees receive routine training or information on how to identify child abuse and neglect.

Legal References:

NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section ED 306.04(1)(10), Reporting of Suspected Abuse or Neglect RSA 169-C:29, Persons Required to Report RSA 169-C:30, Nature and Content of Report RSA 169-C:31, Immunity from Liability RSA 169-C:34,III, Duties of the Department of Health and Human Services

If necessary the local police departments in the town where the student resides should be notified:

Town	Telephone	Police Chief
Atkinson	362 - 4001	Albert M. Brackett
Danville	382 - 4443	Wade Parsons
Plaistow	382 - 1200	Kathleen A. Jones
Sandown	887 - 3887	Joseph Gordon

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

School Referral Process (Continued)

TRHS Procedure

Suicide Intervention

When it is brought to the attention of the staff that a student is contemplating suicide such as through a statement to a teacher or friend, a note from a concerned informant, or disclosed in a student's writing such as essays, journals, etc., the information must be presented to a guidance counselor immediately. There is a legal mandate to report.

The counselor will then assess the situation and notify an administrator. The student's parents will be contacted. If it is determined that the student is at risk, the parents will be asked to come to the school immediately to pick up the student and to discuss arrangements for a referral to an outside counseling agency.

Prior to the student's re-entering school, the parent or outside counseling agency must notify the guidance office of the student's current status.

Substance Abuse Referral

The scope of the school district's involvement is to deal with substance abuse as it impacts the educational process. The position will not abrogate the discipline process. The counselor will enhance the discipline code by offering services to students.

In situations where a student is a danger to himself/herself or others, or in cases that are beyond the responsibility of the public school, the student assistance counselor will assist the parents and student in making an outside referral. It is understood that in these instances, financial responsibility, as well as the responsibility to follow through with recommended referrals or treatment, rests with the parent.

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention

TRSB Policies ACAB Harassment and Sexual Harassment of School Employees

Harassment of school employees because of age, sex, race, creed, color, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation is prohibited. Such conduct is a violation of Board policy and may constitute illegal discrimination under state and federal laws.

Harassment

Harassment includes but is not limited to verbal abuse, threats, physical assault and/or battery based on age, sex, race, creed, color, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation.

Sexual Harassment

Unwelcome sexual advances, suggestive or lewd remarks, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal and physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute sexual harassment when:

A. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an employee's work environment or employee benefits;

B. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an employee is used as the basis for decisions on employment benefits; and/or

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

Any employee who engages in harassment or sexual harassment will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. All complaints of harassment will be investigated in accordance with the School Employee Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Procedure.

Cross Reference:

ACAB-R School Employee Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Procedure AC Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity Legal References: Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC § 1681 et seq.) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d) Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC § 12101 et seq.) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 et seq.); 34 CFR § 104.7Title VII (42 USC § 2000c-2; 29 CFR § 1604.11) Age Discrimination in Employment Act (29 USC §623) NH RSA 354-A:7 NH Code Admin. R. Ed. 303.01(i) and (j)

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Continued)

TRSB Policy JICK

Pupil Safety, Violence Prevention and Anti-Bullying

I. Definitions (RSA 193-F:3)

1. Bullying. Bullying is hereby defined as a single significant incident or a pattern of incidents involving a written, verbal, or electronic communication, or a physical act or gesture, or any combination thereof, directed at another pupil which:

- (1) Physically harms a pupil or damages the pupil's property;
- (2) Causes emotional distress to a pupil;
- (3) Interferes with a pupil's educational opportunities;
- (4) Creates a hostile educational environment; or
- (5) Substantially disrupts the orderly operation of the school.

Bullying shall also include actions motivated by an imbalance of power based on a pupil's actual or perceived personal characteristics, behaviors, or beliefs, or motivated by the pupil's association with another person and based on the other person's characteristics, behaviors, or beliefs.

Bullying is defined as actual or perceived verbal or physical conduct that denigrates or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry or ethnicity, sexual orientation, socio-economical status, age, physical, mental, or leaning disability, gender, gender identity and expression, obesity, or other distinguishing personal characteristics, or based on association with any person identified in any of the above categories.

2. Cyberbullying. Cyberbullying is defined as any conduct defined as "bullying" in this policy that is undertaken through the use of electronic devices. For purposes of this policy, any references to the term bullying shall include cyberbullying.

3. Electronic devices. Electronic devices include, but are not limited to, telephones, cellular phones, computers, pagers, electronic mail, instant messaging, text messaging, and websites.

4. School property. School property means all real property and all physical plant and equipment used for school purposes, including public or private school buses or vans.

Any reference in this policy to "parent" shall include parents or legal guardians.

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Continued)

II. Statement Prohibiting Bullying or Cyberbullying of a Pupil (RSA 193-F:4, II(a))

The Board is committed to providing all pupils a safe and secure school environment. This policy is intended to comply with RSA 193-F. Conduct constituting bullying and/or cyberbullying will not be tolerated and is hereby prohibited. Further, in accordance with RSA 193-F:4, the District reserves the right to address bullying and, if necessary, impose discipline for bullying that:

(1) Occurs on, or is delivered to, school property or a school-sponsored activity or event on or off school property; or

(2) Occurs off of school property or outside of a school-sponsored activity or event, if the conduct interferes with a pupil's educational opportunities or substantially disrupts the orderly operations of the school or school-sponsored activity or event.

III. Statement prohibiting retaliation or false accusations (RSA 193-F:4, II(b))

False Reporting. A student found to have wrongfully and intentionally accused another of bullying may face discipline or other consequences, ranging from positive behavioral interventions up to and including suspension or expulsion.

Reprisal or Retaliation. The district will discipline and take appropriate action against any student, teacher, administrator, volunteer, or other employee who retaliates against any person who makes a good faith report of alleged bullying or against any person who testifies, assists, or participates in a proceeding or hearing relating to such bullying.

Process to Protect Pupils from Retaliation. If the alleged victim or any witness expresses to the Principal or other staff member that he/she believes he/she may be retaliated against, the Principal or designee shall develop a process or plan to protect that student from possible retaliation.

IV. Protection of all Pupils (RSA 193-F:4, II(c)

This policy shall apply to all pupils on school district grounds and participating in school district functions, regardless of whether or not such pupil is a student within the District.

V. Disciplinary Consequences For Violations of This Policy (RSA 193-F:4, II(d))

The district reserves the right to impose disciplinary measures or interventions, or both, against any student who commits an act of bullying, falsely accuses another student of bullying, or who retaliates against any student or witness who provides information about an act of bullying.

VI. Distribution and Notice of This Policy (RSA 193-F:4, II(e))

The district shall inform annually school employees, regular school volunteers, pupils, parents, legal guardians, or employees of a company under contract to the school district or its schools. All district employees shall receive annual training.

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Continued)

VII. Procedure for Reporting Bullying (RSA 193-F:4, II(f))

1. At each school, the Principal or designee shall be responsible for receiving complaints of alleged violations of this policy. If the student is more comfortable reporting the alleged act to a person other than the Principal or designee, the student may tell any school district employee or volunteer about the alleged bullying.

2. Any school employee or volunteer who witnesses, receives a report of, or has knowledge or belief that bullying may have occurred shall inform the Principal or designee as soon as possible, but no later than the end of that school day.

3. The Principal or designee may develop a system or method for receiving anonymous reports of bullying. Although students, parents, volunteers and visitors may report anonymously, formal disciplinary action or intervention, or both, may not be based solely on an anonymous report. Independent verification of the anonymous report shall be necessary in order for any disciplinary action to be applied.

4. Upon receipt of a report of bullying, the Principal or designee shall commence an investigation consistent with the provisions of Section XI of this policy.

VIII. Procedure for Internal Reporting Requirements (RSA 193-F:4, II(g))

In order to satisfy the reporting requirements of RSA 193-F:6, the Principal or designee shall be responsible for completing all New Hampshire Department of Education forms and reporting documents of substantiated incidents of bullying. Said forms shall be completed within 10 school days of any substantiated incident. Upon completion of such forms, the Principal or designee shall retain a copy and shall forward one copy to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall maintain said forms in a safe and secure location.

IX. Notifying Parents of Alleged Bullying (RSA 193-F:4, II(h))

The Principal or designee shall report to the parents of a student who has been reported as a victim of bullying and to the parents of a student who has been reported as a perpetrator of bullying within 48 hours of receiving the report. Such notification may be made by telephone, writing or personal conference. The date, time, method, and location (if applicable) of such notification and communication shall be noted in the report.

X. Waiver of Notification Requirement (RSA 193-F:4, II(i))

The Superintendent or designee may, within a 48 hour time period, grant the Principal or designee a waiver from the requirement that the parents of the alleged victim and the alleged perpetrator be notified of the filing of a report. A waiver may only be granted if the Superintendent deems such a waiver to be in the best interest of the victim or perpetrator. Any waiver granted shall be in writing.

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Continued)

XI. Investigative Procedures (RSA 193-F:4, II(j))

1. Upon receipt of a report of bullying, the Principal or the Principal's designee shall, within 5 school days, initiate an investigation into the alleged act. If the Principal is directly and personally involved with a complaint or is closely related to a party to the complaint, then the Superintendent shall direct another district employee to conduct the investigation.

2. The investigation may include documented interviews with the alleged victim, alleged perpetrator and any witnesses.

3. If the alleged bullying was in whole or in part cyberbullying, the Principal or designee may ask students and/or parents to provide the District with printed copies of e-mails, text messages, website pages, or other similar electronic communications.

4. An investigation shall be completed within 5 school days. If the Principal or designee needs more than 5 school days to complete the investigation, the Superintendent may grant an extension of up to 7 school days. In the event such extension is granted, the Principal or designee shall notify in writing all parties involved of the granting of the extension.

5. Whether a particular action or incident constitutes a violation of this policy shall require a determination based on all facts and surrounding circumstances and shall include recommended remedial steps necessary to stop the bullying and a written final report to the Principal or designee.

XII. Response to Remediate Substantiated Instances of Bullying (RSA 193-F:4, II(k))

Consequences and appropriate remedial actions for a student who commits one or more acts of bullying or retaliation may range from positive behavioral interventions up to and including suspension or expulsion of students. Consequences for a student who commits an act of bullying or retaliation shall be varied and graded according to the nature of the behavior, the developmental age of the student, his/her IEP, and the student's history of problem behaviors and performance. Remedial measures shall be designed to correct the problem behavior, prevent another occurrence of the problem, protect and provide support for the victim, and take corrective action for documented systematic problems related to bullying.

In support of this policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to create greater awareness of aggressive behavior, including bullying. The Board encourages the Superintendent to work collaboratively with all staff members to develop responses other than traditional discipline as a way to remediate substantiated instances of bullying. Each school shall develop and maintain a program for bullying prevention.

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Continued)

XIII. Reporting of Substantiated Incidents to the Superintendent (RSA 193-F:4, II(1))

The Principal or designee shall forward all substantiated reports of bullying to the Superintendent upon completion of the Principal's or designee's investigation.

XIV. Communication With Parents Upon Completion of Investigation (RSA 193-F:4, II(m)

1. Within 10 school days of completing an investigation, the Principal or designee will notify the parents/guardians of the victims and perpetrators regarding the school's remedies and assistance, within the boundaries of applicable state and federal law.

2. At the parent's request, the Principal or designee shall schedule a meeting with them to further explain his/her findings and reasons for his/her actions.

3. In accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act and other law concerning student privacy, the District will not disclose educational records of students including the discipline and remedial action assigned to those students and the parents of other students involved in a bullying incident.

XV. Appeal

1. For non-disciplinary remedial actions where no other review procedures govern, the parents of the pupils involved in the bullying shall have the right to appeal the Principal or designee's decision to the Superintendent in writing within five (5) school days. The Superintendent shall review the Principal or designees' decision and issue a written decision within ten (10) school days. If the aggrieved party is still not satisfied with the outcome, the aggrieved party may file a written request for review by the School Board within ten (10) school days of the Superintendent's decision. The School Board will adhere to all applicable New Hampshire Department of Education administrative rules.

2. The procedures under RSA 193:13, Ed 317, and District policies establish the due process and appeal rights for students disciplined for acts of bullying.

3. The School Board or its designee will inform parents of any appeal rights they may have to the New Hampshire State Board of Education.

XVI. School Officials (RSA 193-F:4, II(n)

The Superintendent of Schools is responsible for ensuring that this policy is implemented.

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Continued)

XVII. Capture of Audio Recordings on School Buses

Pursuant to RSA 570-A:2, notice is hereby given that the Board authorizes audio recordings to be made in conjunction with video recordings of the interior of school buses while students are being transported to and from school or school activities. The Superintendent shall ensure that there is a sign informing the occupants of school buses that such recordings are occurring.

XVIII. Use of Video or Audio Recordings in Student Discipline Matters

The District reserves the right to use audio and/or video recording devices on District property (including school buses) to ensure the health, safety and welfare of all staff, students and visitors. Placement and location of such devices will be established in accordance with the provisions of Policies EEAA, EEAE and EEACD.

In the event an audio or video recording is used as part of a student discipline proceeding, such video may become part of a student's education record. If an audio or video recording does become part of a student's education record, the provisions of Policy JRA shall apply.

The Superintendent is authorized to contact legal counsel for matters relative to bullying.

Legal References:

RSA 193-F:3, Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention Act RSA 570-A:2, Capture of Audio Recordings on School Buses Allowed NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 306.04(a)(8), Student Harassment

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Continued)

TRSD Policy JICFA

Hazing

It is the policy of this School District that no student or employees of the District shall participate in or be members of any secret fraternity or secret organization that is in any degree related to the school or to a school activity. No student organization or any person associated with any organization sanctioned by the Board shall engage or participate in hazing. For the purposes of this policy, hazing is defined as an activity which recklessly or intentionally endangers the mental or physical health or safety of a student for the purpose of initiation or admission into or affiliation with any organization sanctioned or authorized by the Board of Education.

"Endanger the physical health" shall include, but is not limited to, any brutality of a physical nature, such as whipping; beating; branding; forced calisthenics; exposure to the elements; forced consumption of any food, alcoholic beverage, drug or controlled dangerous substance; or any forced physical activity which could adversely affect the physical health or safety of the individual.

"Endanger the mental health" shall include any activity, except those activities authorized by law, which would subject the individual to extreme mental stress, such as prolonged sleep deprivation, forced prolonged exclusion from social contact which could result in extreme embarrassment, or any other forced activity which could adversely affect the mental health or dignity of the individual.

Any hazing activity, upon which the initiation or admission into or affiliation with an organization sanctioned or authorized by the Board of Education is conditioned, directly or indirectly, shall be presumed to be a forced activity, even if the student willingly participates in such activity.

This policy is not intended to deprive School District authorities from taking necessary and appropriate disciplinary action toward any student or employee. Students or employees who violate this policy will be subject to disciplinary action which may include expulsion for students and employment termination for employees.

Legal Reference:

RSA 631:7, Student Hazing New Hampshire Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 306.04(a)(7), Student Hazing

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Continued)

TRSB Policies ACAA

Harassment and Sexual Harassment of Students

Harassment of students because of age, sex, race, creed, color, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation is prohibited. Such conduct is a violation of Board policy and may constitute illegal discrimination under state and federal laws.

Harassment includes but is not limited to verbal abuse based on age, sex, race, creed, color, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation. Complaints of pupil harassment and bullying (defined as insults, taunts or challenges, whether verbal or physical in nature, which are likely to intimidate or provoke a violent or disorderly response) may also be pursued under Board Policy JICK - Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention.

Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment includes but is not limited to unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors or pressure to engage in sexual activity, physical contact of a sexual nature, gestures, comments, or other physical, written or verbal conduct that is gender-based that interferes with a student's education. School employees, fellow students, volunteers and visitors to the school, and other persons with whom students may interact in order to pursue school activities are required to refrain from such conduct.

Harassment/sexual harassment of students by school employees is considered grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. Harassment/sexual harassment of students by other students is considered grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion. The Superintendent will determine appropriate sanctions for harassment of students by persons other than school employees and students.

The Superintendent or the employee designated as the Nondiscrimination Officer will investigate complaints of harassment in accordance with the Student Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Procedure. School employees, students, and parents shall be informed of this policy/procedure through handbooks and/or other means selected by the school administration.

Cross Reference:

ACAA-R Student Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Procedure AC Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity JICK Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention *Legal Reference: Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC § 1681 et seq.) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000(d)) NH RSA 193-F:3*

NH Code Admin. R. Ed. 303.01(i)

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Continued)

TRSB Policy ACAB

Harassment and Sexual Harassment of School Employees

Harassment of school employees because of age, sex, race, creed, color, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation is prohibited. Such conduct is a violation of Board policy and may constitute illegal discrimination under state and federal laws.

Harassment

Harassment includes but is not limited to verbal abuse, threats, physical assault and/or battery based on age, sex, race, creed, color, marital status, familial status, physical or mental disability, national origin or sexual orientation.

Sexual Harassment

Unwelcome sexual advances, suggestive or lewd remarks, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal and physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute sexual harassment when:

A. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an employee's work environment or employee benefits;

B. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an employee is used as the basis for decisions on employment benefits; and/or

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

Any employee who engages in harassment or sexual harassment will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

All complaints of harassment will be investigated in accordance with the School Employee Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Procedure.

Notice and Training

Annually, each employee shall receive a copy of this policy and the School Employee Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Procedure. This may be accomplished by including the policy/procedure with employee paychecks or by using other appropriate means to ensure that each employee receives a copy.

Staff Handbook

School Safety and Violence Prevention (Concluded)

Cross Reference: ACAB-R School Employee Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Procedure AC Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity

Legal References:

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC § 1681 et seq.) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d) Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC § 12101 et seq.) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 et seq.); 34 CFR § 104.7Title VII (42 USC § 2000c-2; 29 CFR § 1604.11) Age Discrimination in Employment Act (29 USC §623) NH RSA 354-A:7 NH Code Admin. R. Ed. 303.01(i) and (j)

School Solicitations

TRSB Policy KH

As a general policy, there will be no solicitation within the schools for any purpose whatsoever. No commercial enterprise may be represented in the schools and there will be no sale of goods or services on the premises.

Any request for the exception to this rule must be submitted in writing to the School Board or its agents (Superintendent and/or Principal) at least 30 days prior to the implementation of the requested activity. The School Board reserves the right to grant exceptions. Examples of possible exceptions include the following:

A. An activity conducted by the teachers' club for the purpose of raising funds for a worthwhile service to the school.

B. P.T.A. membership activity.

C. Music lessons given on the premises in compliance with RSA 193:6 (substitution of private instruction in music) provided that all fees are handled by the music instructor.

The foregoing policy is for the purpose of ensuring maximum instruction time for the teacher and in no way reflects a negative attitude toward many of the very worthwhile civic and charitable activities sponsored within the community, either on a strictly local basis or as part of a regional, state, or national activity. The above does not apply when buildings are rented by an organization. No funds will be solicited from school district employees on school property by organizations or individuals not employed by the school district.

Staff Handbook

Social Networking

TRSB Policy GBEBD

Employee Use of Social Networking Websites

Introduction/Purpose

- A. Social networking technology can serve as a powerful tool to enhance education, communication, and learning. This technology can provide both educational and professional benefits, including helping students to succeed in their educational and career endeavors.
- B. The School Board is committed to ensuring that all stakeholders who utilize social networking technology for professional purposes, including staff and students, do so in a safe and responsible manner.
- C. This policy establishes acceptable use guidelines regarding practices for social networking communication between school district staff, as well as social networking communication between staff and students.

Definition of Social Networking

Social networking is defined as any form of online publication or presence that allows interactive communication, including, but not limited to, social networks, blogs, Internet websites, Internet forums, and wikis. Examples of social networking websites include, but are not limited to, Facebook, Twitter, and Google+.

- A. **Professional social networking** is a work-related social networking activity that is district or school based. (e.g., the School District establishing a Twitter account for community communication, or a teacher establishing a Google site for his/her class).
- B. **Personal social networking** is a non work-related social networking activity (e.g., a staff member establishing a Facebook page or a Twitter account for his/her own personal use).

Social Networking Use

1. The School Board strongly discourages school district staff from socializing with students on personal social networking websites. Further, the School District disclaims all liability for any lawsuits, damages, or other actions resulting from said conduct;

2. All school district employees, faculty and staff shall not post any school district data, documents, photographs or other district owned or created information on any personal social networking website;

3. The posting of any private or confidential school district material on any social networking website is strictly prohibited, including but not limited to student education records that are protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA);

4. School district employees are prohibited from engaging in conduct on any social networking website that violates the law, school board policies and procedures, or other school district standards of conduct.

Staff Handbook

Employees who violate this policy may face discipline and/or termination, in line with other school board policies and/or collective bargaining agreements, if applicable;

5. Acceptable professional use of social networking websites include district provided resources including but not limited to, Google Apps for Education, and comparable social networking websites that do not contain offensive or inappropriate textual and/or graphic material;

6. The use of any social networking website for professional purposes must be for educational use only, that directly supports classroom instruction, community communication, or other official district or school business;

7. School district staff shall not post electronic files of student photos and/or videos, etc. of students that they are prohibited from publishing, as previously requested by parents in writing to the school principal;

8. School district staff shall not require other staff members or students to disclose or furnish their credentials to any of their personal social networking website accounts. Doing so may violate their right of privacy.

Guidance Regarding Professional Social Networking

1. School district staff should treat professional social networking space and communication like a classroom and/or a professional workplace. The same standards expected in school district professional settings are expected on professional social networking websites;

2. School district staff should not use their personal email address for professional social networking activities. The professional social networking presence should utilize a professional email address and should be completely separate from any personal social networking presence maintained by the staff member;

3. School district staff should use privacy settings to control access to their professional social networking websites to ensure that professional social networking communications only reach their intended audience.

Staff Handbook

Staff Meetings

TRHS Procedure

Every effort will be made to adhere to the schedule outlined below, realizing, of course, that emergencies will be dealt with as necessary. The following types of meetings will be held accordingly (*See Appendix* H):

Faculty Meetings

Staff meetings will be held on the **FIRST** Monday of each month or on that Tuesday following a Monday holiday. All teachers will attend, including coaches. If there is any item a staff member would like to place on the agenda, the staff member should see the building principal. Whenever possible, time will be set aside for PLCs to meet.

Department Meetings

Department meetings may be held on the **THIRD** Monday of each month or on the first Tuesday following a Monday holiday. All department members are required to attend. Whenever possible, time will be set aside for PLCs to meet.

District Workshops

Throughout the school year, days have been scheduled for district wide workshops or other sanctioned professional development activities. Staff is encouraged to attend workshops related to their professional development needs and goals.

All staff members are expected to attend scheduled department and faculty meetings. Appointments, meetings and practices are not to be scheduled at these times that require you to be in attendance.

Staff Handbook

Staff Recruitment and Selection

TRSB Policies GCEB

The School Board and the administrative personnel realize that a sound educational system cannot be built and maintained without definite procedures for the recruitment of personnel.

1. The quality of the educational program in any school system is dependent upon the employment and retention of high caliber.

2. All currently employed personnel share a common responsibility for the procurement of the type of staff needed. They are expected to help in every way possible and specifically, by making the system aware of outstanding prospects at every opportunity.

3. Staff recruitment is responsibility of the Superintendent. Principals and other staff will assist the Superintendent, as needed.

4. First consideration will be given to those applicants seeking permanent, rather than temporary employment.

5. All professional staff selected for employment must be recommended by the Superintendent and approved by the school board.

6. In selecting nominees for instructional positions, the Superintendent, after considering recommendations of subordinates, will be guided by the following criteria.

- □ Professional qualifications and credentials, including full state certification
- □ Successful teaching experience
- □ Specific requirements of position
- □ Balance and stability within faculty
- \square Budget considerations

7. Members of the immediate families of Timberlane Regional School Board members are not eligible for permanent employment within the district, unless so employed prior to such membership. Candidates for employment within the district who have members of their immediate family already employed in the district, shall not be placed in a subordinate position, nor within each other's influence. All such situations shall be reviewed by the supervisory staff and recommendations shall be presented to the school board for final approval.

8. District candidates for vacancies on the staff shall receive first consideration, provided their background, training and qualifications for the position are equal to that of other candidates.

Staff Handbook

Staff Reimbursement for Courses

TRHS Procedure

Since both parties to the Agreement, Article 7, Teacher Contract, appreciate the importance of continued training and professional improvement, each professional employee is expected to establish a continuing professional development plan which shall be reviewed on a periodic basis.

Accordingly, and in support of such programs of self-improvement and development, the board agrees to subsidize the cost of approved education courses for professional employees in accordance with the following provisions:

- 1. Any professional employee desiring reimbursement for an education course shall discuss his/her plans for further study with his/her building principal and **obtain the principal's and the superintendent's approval prior to enrollment in the course**.
- 2. The board will reimburse a professional employee for tuition up to 12 credits per teacher per year. This is the rate stipulated in the agreement.
- 3. Monies will not be approved or encumbered prior to one month before the first class session of the course and **the teacher must present evidence of registration for the class within fourteen days** of the first class or the encumbrance will be made available to other members of the unit on a first come, first served basis according to the date of application.
- 4. Reimbursement will be made upon the employee's presentation to the Superintendent of evidence of completion of the course with a grade of "B" or better and a receipt from the Bursar's Office indicating tuition charges made.

Staff Handbook

Student Records

TRHS Procedure

Cumulative folders on every student are maintained by the Guidance Office. Each counselor is assigned a portion of a class. Teachers are urged to contact the assigned counselor on any question of past performance of a student or for any type of information which will help to service a student more effectively.

Permanent Records

Permanent records are maintained for every student and kept in the school's vault. In addition to identifying information, they contain school grades and some test data of students up to the current year. These are a basic source of information to teachers, and they are accessible to the teacher on request to the guidance secretary.

Testing Information

Cumulative folders contain information on tests of learning ability and other standardized tests taken by students. The individual results of the state assessments are sent to parents or guardians. Overall results are analyzed and evaluated at the department level to identify areas where instruction or content may need to be reinforced or enhanced. Teacher awareness of this data may also help to meet the learning needs of individual students.

Staff Handbook

Student Pass System

TRHS Procedure

Students who are in the corridors at times other than the passing time between periods must have a written pass issued by a teacher or staff member. All student passes must include the date, the time student left class, the destination of the student, and the signature of the staff member who issued the pass.

The basic rule is that a student must report to his/her teacher before the late bell rings. If a student is detained by a teacher in a previous class, that teacher must give the student a pass to present to his/her next teacher.

If he/she must use the restroom, the student's teacher must give him/her a pass. Issuance of passes during a regular class period should be kept to a minimum and, if possible, passes should not be issued in the first five (5) minutes or in the last ten (10) minutes of a period.

Student Passes during Study Hall

Students requesting permission to leave a Study Hall must present to their Study Hall teacher a pass from the teacher he/she wishes to see. The Study Hall teacher will initial the pass. The student must have the pass in his/her possession when he/she arrives at the Study Hall. In other words, he/she must make prior arrangements with the teacher to whom he/she is reporting from the Study Hall.

Study Hall supervisors should not permit students to leave the Study Hall to get a pass from another teacher, nor should they let students go to another area without a pass. Only one student's name on a pass will be allowed and the time should be clearly indicated.

Under no conditions should a student be given a pass to the cafeteria during lunch periods.

No passes should be issued after 2:00 p.m.

Staff Handbook

Study Hall Guidelines

TRHS Procedure

Full Study Hall Periods (47 minutes):

- Take attendance within the first 10 minutes of the period. Have students remain seated throughout the period.
- Students may read, work on school assignments individually, and work quietly on group projects with teacher's permission.
- If a student wishes to go to the Media Center (MC) during their Study hall, they must obtain a pass at the beginning of that school day from a MC Specialist and present this pass to the teacher at the beginning of the Study hall. If they have no pass, they may not go to the MC that day.
- Limit passes out of the room to one person at a time.
- No passes are to be given to the cafeteria.
- No students are to be seated at teacher desks or use teacher computers.
- Stress the importance of academics during this Study Hall period. Create the environment: circulate around the room often, assist students who may need help, etc. The general tone should be that of a reading room in a library.

Study/Lunch or Lunch/Study (22 minutes):

- Take attendance within the first 10 minutes of the period. Have students remain seated throughout the period.
- Students may read, work on school assignments individually, work quietly on group projects, converse in whispered tones for short periods of time, listen to iPods with earphones at a volume audible to the listener only, and participate in discussions initiated by the teacher.
- Only in emergencies should passes be issued, and students should not be allowed in from other advisories or studies. The general tone should be like that of a cooperative learning classroom.

Staff Handbook

Teacher Records

TRHS Procedure

Active File

Individual teacher folders on file in the principal's office are open to review upon a request in writing. The building principal will then act upon the request within five school days.

Inactive File

Those teachers no longer employed by the Timberlane Regional School District may view their folders located in the superintendent's office, upon written request. The superintendent will act upon the request within five working days.

Staff Handbook

Textbook Accountability

TRHS Procedure

Maintenance & Control of Instructional Materials

In an effort to reduce education costs and to promote individual responsibility for public property, the board has established the following policy regarding textbooks:

- 1. All students shall be issued the necessary textbooks for their course work.
- 2. Adequate receipted records shall be kept on all textbooks issued to students and will indicate the condition of the book at the time it was issued (new, good, fair, poor).
- 3. Students who fail to return issued textbooks are required to pay the cost of replacing them.
- 4. Students who attempt to return a book in such condition as would make it not usable to another student will be instructed to retain the textbook and will be charged for it.
- 5. Parents of students using textbooks shall be notified of the students' responsibility in caring for textbooks properly and of the parents' or guardians' responsibility in paying for any textbooks which are lost or appreciably damaged.

Lost books should be turned into the high school academic dean. If a student does not return a book at the end of a course, the book receipt is given to the academic dean who will prepare a list of all students' missing books. This list along with the book receipts will be turned into the main office at the end of the school year, and the student will be billed for the book.

Staff Handbook

Turnitin

Guidelines for the use of Turnitin

Student papers are considered educational records that may contain personally identifiable information and are protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). In order to maintain student privacy, teachers will adhere to the following guidelines when using Turnitin:

- 1. Teacher must confirm that parent has granted permission for their child to use Turnitin.
- 2. Accounts must be created by the individual student and only that student may upload papers.
- 3. Ensure that any names, references to Timberlane Regional High School, or other personal identifiable information are removed from papers prior to submitting to Turnitin.
- 4. TRHS teachers may be contacted by faculty from other educational institutions regarding the similarities in papers submitted to Turnitin. Deny any requests to release a student's paper to other TRHS faculty, to faculty from other institutions, or to Turnitin.

Staff Handbook

Unacceptable Behavior

TRSB Policy GBE-R

Employees are expected to exemplify behavior and conduct that is professional and contribute to positive learning environment in the school. Certain types of conduct and behavior are considered to be patently unacceptable. Examples include:

- 1. Immoral acts
- 2. Insubordination
- 3. Controlled substance abuse
- 4. Alcohol abuse -- intoxication
- 5. Excessive absence
- 6. Excessive tardiness
- 7. Unlawful acts
- 8. Interference with proper student activities
- 9. Interference with staff work functions
- 10. Possession of weapons or other devices that could inflict injury
- 11. Harassment and/or intimidation of students, staff, or citizens at large
- 12. Improper or obscene personal conduct
- 13. Misuse or negligent treatment of district property
- 14. Abusive and/or vulgar language
- 15. Threatening or violent behavior
- 16. Misrepresentation regarding employee benefits, privileges, and other rules and regulations

Staff Handbook

Work Rules and Expectations

TRSD Policy GBE-R

The following work rules are published to minimize the likelihood of any staff member becoming subject to any disciplinary action. Violation of these rules cannot be ignored by the administration. In the event a staff member is found to have violated these rules, he/she will be subject to discipline including reprimand, suspension, discharge, and criminal prosecution where warranted. The following rules are not intended to be all inclusive.

- 1. Staff members are expected to report for duty every working day. Excessive tardiness or absenteeism cannot be condoned.
- 2. Staff members must notify their supervisor of intended absence within the time limitations specified.
- 3. Staff members must observe working hour schedules. (Starting time, quitting time, lunch, and preparation periods)
- 4. Staff members may not solicit or collect contributions for any purpose without permission from the administration.
- 5. Staff members must not sell or offer for sale any article or service on school property without permission from the administration.
- 6. Staff members must be diligent in their duties during assigned working hours. Abuse of time cannot be condoned.
- 7. Staff members must not interfere with any other employee's performance of duties.
- 8. Staff members may not perform unauthorized personal work during assigned working hours.
- 9. Staff members must not commit an act which might endanger the safety or lives of others.
- 10. Staff members must perform all work properly assigned by the administration.
- 11. Staff members may not falsify school records, reports, or payrolls.
- 12. Staff members may not leave the work location during working hours without authorization.

Staff Handbook

Work Rules and Expectations (Continued)

- 13. Staff members must not abuse, destroy, damage, or deface school property, tools, equipment or the property of others on school premises.
- 14. Staff members are prohibited from bringing, consuming, or selling alcoholic beverages or controlled substances on school property, or at school sponsored functions, and from reporting for duty under the influence of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances.
- 15. Staff members are prohibited from carrying firearms or weapons on school property.
- 16. Staff members shall not disclose confidential information to unauthorized persons.
- 17. Staff members shall not convert property of the district, other employees, students, or vendors for their own use.
- 18. Staff members are expected to wear appropriate attire in each work location and model in their dress the expectations upheld for students in the Dress Code.
- 19. Staff members are prohibited from smoking on District property.
- 20. Staff members are expected to keep up to date attendance records, student grades, and a teacher plan book. All of these are to be made readily accessible to those most concerned, e.g., students, parents, counselors, and administrators.
- 21. Staff members are expected to report quarterly on their students' progress vis a vis the school wide academic expectations (writing, problem solving, researching)
- 22. Staff members are expected to wear photo identification badges that are visible at all times in school buildings.
- 23. Staff members are to sign in and out electronically each contract or flex day.
- 24. Staff members are expected to model and uphold the social and civic behavioral expectations for all students.

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

Work Rules and Expectations (Continued)

TRHS Procedure

O.W.L.S.

Offer your best effort and be involved, contributing citizens at school and in the wider community

Work cooperatively and resolve conflicts peacefully

Live responsibly and lend a helping hand to those in need

Speak and act respectfully toward all
Staff Handbook

The MISSION of the Timberlane Regional School District is to engage all students in challenging and relevant learning opportunities, emphasizing high aspirations and personal growth. M T W TH F M T W TH F August (1) D-PD B-PD 31 NT X February 6 7 8 9 10 September (21) X 6 7 8 9 10 13 4 15 16 17 20 21 22 23 24 October (1) 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 13 15 15 15 15 15 17 18 12 13 14 12 13 14 12 13 14 22 20 12 12 13 14 12 13 14 12 13 14 12 13 14 12 13 14 12 13 14 12 13 14 12 13 14 12 13 14 12 <th< th=""><th></th><th colspan="7">Timberlane Regional School District Atkinson, Danville, Plaistow, Sandown 2016 – 2017 School Calendar</th></th<>		Timberlane Regional School District Atkinson, Danville, Plaistow, Sandown 2016 – 2017 School Calendar										
August (1) D-PD B-PD 31 NT X February (18) August (18) August (19) August (10) August (10) Aug												
(1) D-PD B-PD 31 Image: form of the state o		м	т	w	тн	F		М	т	w	тн	F
(1) D-PD B-PD 31 Image: form of the state o	August				NT	x	February			1	2	3
September (21) X 6 7 8 9 X	-	D-PD	B-PD	31			,	6	7			_
	_						(18)					
12 13 14 15 16 12 13 14 15 16 18 27 28 29 30 March Name 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 13 14 15 16 7 8 9 10 14 24 25 26 27 28 3 4 5 6 14 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 15 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 14 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 14 15 <	-	v	6	7						22	23	24
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	(21)		_		_	-		•	•			
October (19) X 4 5 6 7 20 21 22 23 24 17 18 19 20 21 20 21 22 23 24 17 18 19 20 21 27 28 29 30 31 17 18 19 20 21 20 21 27 28 29 30 31 18 19 20 21 20 21 3 4 5 6 7 18 19 20 21 20 21 20 21 20 21 November 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 12 23 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 7 8 9 10 11 12 12 13 14 15 ER 12<							March			X	X	X
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $		ER	27	28	29	30	(19)				-	
	Ortohor	2		F	~	7						
						-						
31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 November (17) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Wovember (17) ER ER 2 3 4 5 6 7 Ber (17) ER 2 20 3 4 5 6 7 December (17) 5 6 7 8 9 10 X	()	17	18			21						
November (17) 1 2 3 4 November (17) ER X 9 10 X 1 2 3 4 X			25	26	27	28				-		-
November (17)1234123414151617182122XXX282930May12345December1314151617181920211822XXXXX1112345December1314151617181920212223451718192021222324252611121314151617181920212223242425261223242526PD12131415ERMU <td< td=""><td></td><td>31</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td></td<>		31							-			-
Intervention ER X 9 10 X Number of the second sec							(13)					
I4 15 16 17 18 28 29 30 X X May 1 2 3 4 5 December 1 2 3 4 5 11 12 3 4 5 I1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 I2 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 22 22 23 X 30 31 19 19 20 21 22 23 X	November		1	2	3	4		X	X	X	X	X
21 22 X X X 28 29 30 - - - - - - - 1 1 2 3 4 5 (17) 5 6 7 8 9 - 1 1 1 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 ER ER - - 1 2 22 23 24 25 ER - - - 1 2 22 23 24 25 ER - - - 1 2 23 24 25 ER - - 1 2 23 24 25 ER - - 1 2 23 24 25 ER - - 1 2 2 30 31 - - - - - 1 2 2 23 24 25 ER - - - - - -	(17)											
28 29 30 Image: Second S												
December 1 2 8 9 10 11 12 (17) 5 6 7 8 9 15 16 17 18 19 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 ER January X X X X X X X Y 3 (19) 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 ER 12 13 14 15 ER 9 9 12 13 14 15 ER 9 12 13 14 15 ER NU NU MU M							Mav	1	2	3	4	5
December 1 2 15 16 17 18 19 (17) 5 6 7 8 9 9 22 23 24 25 ER 19 20 21 22 23 X 30 31 2 23 24 25 ER ER 1 2 23 24 25 ER ER 1 2 23 24 25 ER ER 1 2 23 24 25 ER 1 2 23 24 25 ER 1 2 15 6 7 8 9 15 16 17 18 19 20 15 6 7 8 9 12 13 14 15 ER 10 12 13 14 15 ER 9 12 13 14 15 ER 10 10 16 13 14 15 ER 10 12 13 14 15 ER 10 12 13		20	27	50								
Image: Construct of the second sec	December									17		
January 19 20 21 22 23 X	(17)		_			-					25	ER
XXXXXXJanuaryX3456Y910111213Y1718192023242526PD3031PD = Professional DevelopmentNT = New Teacher Day BPD = District Professional DevelopmentNT = New Teacher Day R = Early ReleaseStudent Year = 180 daysTeacher Year = 187 days Quarters: November 2, January 18, March 31, and Last Day of SchoolPD = Professional DevelopmentNT = New Teacher Day BPD = Building Level Professional DevelopmentNT = New Teacher Day R = Early ReleaseStudent Year = 180 daysTeacher Year = 187 days Quarters: November 2, January 18, March 31, and Last Day of SchoolAugust 25New Teacher OrientationDec 26-Jan 2Holiday BreakAugust 31First Day of SchoolIJanuary 16Martin Luther King Jr. Civil Rights DaySeptember 5Labor DayFeb 27-Mar 3Winter BreakOctober 10Columbus DayMarch 14Professional DevelopmentOctober 11Professional DevelopmentApril 24-28Spring BreakNovember 8Presidential ElectionMay 29Memorial Day Of School **November 11- Veterans Day ObservedJune 16Last Day of School **								•	30	31		
January (19)X3456789(19)9101112131415ERX1718192023242526PDMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUPD = Professional Development Day (no school for students) D=PD = District Professional DevelopmentNT = New Teacher Day Quarters: November 2, January 18, March 31, and Last Day of School Trimesters: December 2, January 18, March 31, and Last Day of School Trimesters: December 2, March 15, and Last Day of School9August 25New Teacher OrientationDec 26-Jan 2Holiday BreakAugust 31First Day of SchoolJanuary 16Martin Luther King Jr. Civil Rights DayAugust 31First Day of SchoolJanuary 27Professional DevelopmentSeptember 5Labor DayKarch 14Professional DevelopmentOctober 10Columbus DayMarch 14Professional DevelopmentOctober 11Professional DevelopmentApril 24-28Spring BreakNovember 8Presidential ElectionMay 29-Memorial Day ObservedNovember 11- Veterans Day ObservedJune 16Last Day of School **												
(19)910111213(19)9101112131415ERMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUPD = Professional Development Day (no school for students) 0 3031Student Year = 180 daysTeacher Year = 187 days Quarters: November 2, January 18, March 31, and Last Day of SchoolERD-PD = District Professional DevelopmentNT - New Teacher Day R-PD = Building Level Professional DevelopmentStudent Year = 180 daysTeacher Year = 187 days Quarters: November 2, January 18, March 31, and Last Day of School Trimesters: December 2, March 15, and Last Day of SchoolERAugust 25New Teacher OrientationDec 26-Jan 2Holiday BreakAugust 29-30Professional DevelopmentJanuary 16Martin Luther King Jr. Civil Rights DayAugust 31First Day of SchoolJanuary 27Professional DevelopmentSeptember 5Labor DayFeb 27-Mar 3Winter BreakOctober 10Columbus DayMarch 14Professional DevelopmentOctober 11Professional DevelopmentApril 24-28Spring BreakNovember 8Presidential ElectionMay 29-Memorial Day ObservedNovember 11Veterans Day ObservedJune 16Last Day of School **		_								_		
X1718192023242526PD30312126PDPD = Professional Development Day (no school for students) D-PD = District Professional Development NT= New Teacher Day B-PD = Building Level Professional Development X = Holiday/School BreakStudent Year = 180 days Quarters: November 2, January 18, March 31, and Last Day of School Trimesters: December 2, March 15, and Last Day of School Trimesters: December 2, March 15, and Last Day of SchoolAugust 25New Teacher OrientationDec 26-Jan 2Holiday BreakAugust 29-30Professional DevelopmentJanuary 16Martin Luther King Jr. Civil Rights DayAugust 31First Day of SchoolJanuary 27Professional DevelopmentSeptember 5Labor DayFeb 27-Mar 3Winter BreakOctober 10Columbus DayMarch 14Professional DevelopmentOctober 11Professional DevelopmentApril 24-28Spring BreakNovember 8Presidential ElectionMay 29-Memorial Day ObservedNovember 11- Veterans Day ObservedJune 16Last Day of School **			_	-			(12)				-	
23 24 25 26 PD MU MU <t< td=""><td>(19)</td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	(19)	-										
PD = Professional Development Day (no school for students) D-PD = District Professional Development NT = New Teacher Day B-PD = Building Level Professional Development X = Holiday/School Break MU = Make-up Day ER = Early ReleaseStudent Year = 180 days Teacher Year = 187 days Quarters: November 2, January 18, March 31, and Last Day of School Trimesters: December 2, March 15, and Last Day of SchoolAugust 25New Teacher OrientationDec 26-Jan 2Holiday BreakAugust 29-30Professional DevelopmentJanuary 16Martin Luther King Jr. Civil Rights DayAugust 31First Day of SchoolJanuary 27Professional DevelopmentSeptember 5Labor DayFeb 27-Mar 3Winter BreakOctober 10Columbus DayMarch 14Professional DevelopmentOctober 11Professional DevelopmentApril 24-28Spring BreakNovember 8Presidential ElectionMay 29-Memorial Day ObservedNovember 11- Veterans Day ObservedJune 16Last Day of School **												
D-PD = District Professional Development NT = New Teacher Day B-PD = Building Level Professional Development Quarters: November 2, January 18, March 31, and Last Day of School Trimesters: December 2, March 15, and Last Day of School August 25 New Teacher Orientation Dec 26-Jan 2 Holiday Break August 29-30 Professional Development January 16 Martin Luther King Jr. Civil Rights Day August 31 First Day of School January 27 Professional Development September 5 Labor Day Feb 27-Mar 3 Winter Break October 10 Columbus Day March 14 Professional Development October 11 Professional Development April 24-28 Spring Break November 8 Presidential Election May 29 Memorial Day Observed November 11 • Veterans Day Observed June 16 Last Day of School **		30	31									
August 29-30 Professional Development January 16 Martin Luther King Jr. Civil Rights Day August 31 First Day of School January 27 Professional Development September 5 Labor Day Feb 27-Mar 3 Winter Break October 10 Columbus Day March 14 Professional Development October 11 Professional Development April 24-28 Spring Break November 8 Presidential Election May 29 Memorial Day Observed November 11 Veterans Day Observed June 16 Last Day of School **	D-PD = District Profes B-PD = Building Level	ssional Dev Professio	velopment nal Develo	MT=New	Teacher		Quarters: November 2,]	anuary 18,	March 31,	and Last D		ool
August 31First Day of SchoolJanuary 27Professional DevelopmentSeptember 5Labor DayFeb 27-Mar 3Winter BreakOctober 10Columbus DayMarch 14Professional DevelopmentOctober 11Professional DevelopmentApril 24-28Spring BreakNovember 8Presidential ElectionMay 29•Memorial Day ObservedNovember 11• Veterans Day ObservedJune 16Last Day of School **	August 25	New Te	acher Ori	entation			Dec 26-Jan 2	Holiday Bı	reak			
September 5 Labor Day Feb 27-Mar 3 Winter Break October 10 Columbus Day March 14 Professional Development October 11 Professional Development April 24-28 Spring Break November 8 Presidential Election May 29 Memorial Day Observed November 11 Veterans Day Observed June 16 Last Day of School ** 	August 29-30	Professi	ional Dev	elopment			January 16	Martin Lut	ther King	Jr. Civil R	ights Day	y
October 10 Columbus Day March 14 Professional Development October 11 Professional Development April 24-28 Spring Break November 8 Presidential Election May 29 Memorial Day Observed November 11 Veterans Day Observed June 16 	August 31	First Da	y of Scho	ol			January 27	Profession	al Develo	pment		
October 11 Professional Development April 24-28 Spring Break November 8 Presidential Election May 29 •Memorial Day Observed November 11 • Veterans Day Observed June 16 Last Day of School **	September 5	Labor D	ay				Feb 27-Mar 3	Winter Br	eak			
October 11 Professional Development April 24-28 Spring Break November 8 Presidential Election May 29 •Memorial Day Observed November 11 • Veterans Day Observed June 16 Last Day of School **	October 10	Columb	us Day				March 14	Profession	al Develo	pment		
November 8 Presidential Election May 29 •Memorial Day Observed November 11 • Veterans Day Observed June 16 Last Day of School **	October 11			elopment								
November 11 • Veterans Day Observed June 16 Last Day of School **	November 8			-			-			served		
									-			
November 23-25 Thanksgiving Break June 16-22 Make Up Days	November 23-25											

Required day out of school per RSA 288:4 ** Subject to change due to school closures

Early Release days: September 26, November 7, May 26 and last day of school.

Approved by the Timberlane Regional School Board March 19, 2015. Modified on March 17, 2016.

Staff Handbook

Appendix B – Bell Schedule 2016-2017

Timberlane Regional High School

Daily Bell Schedule

	Class Schedule		Lun	ch Schedules
				Period 4
Period 1	7:20 – 8:06	В	Study: Lunch:	9:56 – 10:18 10:20 – 10:43
Period 2	8:11 - 8:57			Period 5
Deried 2	0.02 0.51	Α	Lunch: Study:	10:47 – 11:10 11:12 – 11:35
Period 3	9:02 – 9:51		Study:	10:47 – 11:10
Period 4	9:56 – 10:43	B	Lunch:	11:12 – 11:35
			-	Period 6
Period 5	10:47 – 11:35	В	Study: Lunch:	11:39 – 12:02 12:04 – 12:27
Period 6	11:39 – 12:27			Period 7
Period 6	11.39 - 12.27		Lunch	
Period 7	12:32 – 1:19	Α	Lunch: Study:	12:32 – 12:55 12:58 – 12:27
Period 8	1:24 – 2:10			

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

Appendix C – Delayed Opening Bell Schedule

Timberlane Regional High School

Class Schedule			Lun	ch Schedules		
Period 1	9:20 - 9:47				Period 4	
		-	В	Lunch:	10:55 – 11:22	
Period 2	9:52 – 10:19			1	Period 5	
Period 3	10:24 – 10:51	-	Α	Lunch: Study:	11:26 – 11:49 11:51 – 12:14	
Period 4	10:55 – 11:22	-	В	Study: Lunch:	11:26 – 11:49 11:51 – 12:14	
		-		1	Period 6	
Period 5	11:26 – 12:14	_	В	Study: Lunch:	12:18 – 12:41 12:43 – 1:06	
Period 6	12:18 - 1:06				Period 7	
Period 7	1:11 - 1:38	-	Α	Lunch:	1:11 - 1:38	
Period 8	1:43 - 2:10	-				

Delayed Opening Bell Schedule

Staff Handbook

Appendix D – Guidance Counselor Assignments 2016-2017

SCHOOL COUNSELOR ASSIGNMENTS 2016 - 2017

	A - COTTER	MRS. MAHER
	COYLE - HANDY	MR. FISH
GRADE 9	HANNA - MATZ	MRS. PETRY
	MAZUR - REED	MR. WOODWORTH
	RICE - YOUNG	MRS. MAHONEY
	A - CULLEN	MRS. MAHER
	D'AGATI - HYDER	MR. FISH
GRADE 10	INGHAM - MILLS	MRS. PETRY
	MOLINO - SCRIBNER	MR. WOODWORTH
	SEAGER - YOUNG	MRS. MAHONEY

	A - CORWIN	MRS. MAHER
	COSTA - GRANT	MR. FISH
GRADE 11	GREENWOOD - MANFRATES	MRS. PETRY
	MANNING - REYNOLDS	MR. WOODWORTH
	RICCIO - ZHOU	MRS. MAHONEY

	A - COOPER	MRS. MAHER
	COPP - HEIDENREICH	MR. FISH
GRADE 12	HENNESSEY - McABEE	MRS. PETRY
	McAULIFFE - ROY	MR. WOODWORTH
	SALOIS - ZHENG	MRS. MAHONEY

Staff Handbook

Appendix E – Emergency Evacuation Routes

Main High School Building

Exit #1 – Front doors by the Main Office/Nurses' Office

Rooms 100, 102, 104, 106, 108, 110, 400, 402, 404, Library (112), and restrooms *Exit the room, turn left; leave the building by the front doors*

Faculty Men and Women's Rooms Exit right, take right at end of corridor and exit through the front doors

Rooms 111 and 111A – Exit the room; turn right; leave the building by the front doors

Administrative Suite (407), Guidance Suite (409), Room 403, Conf. Rm. and Work Rm. *Exit via the administrative hallway, through the front office to the front doors*

Rooms 113, 500, 501, 502, 503, 504, 505 and 506 Exit right out of the room; turn right at the 100 corridor and exit through the front doors

Exit #7 – Custodial Area

Custodial room and kitchen – Exit through door at back of the custodial area

Exit #2 – Front doors by room 326

Rooms 309, 311, 313, 315, 317, 411, 413, 415, 506, 507, School Store and boys' restroom *Exit the room, turn left; leave the building by the front doors*

Rooms 306, 308, 310, 314, 316, 326, 406, 408, 410, 412 and the girls' restroom *Exit the room, turn right; leave the building by the front doors*

Rooms 310, 312 and 314 Exit room into the corridor; turn right; leave the building by the front doors

Exit #4 – Side door between rooms 320 and 322

Rooms 318 and 320 – Exit room into corridor; turn right; leave building by the side door

Rooms 322 and 324 – Exit room into corridor, turn left; leave building by the side door

Exit #8 – Cafeteria

Cafeteria, girls' and boys' restrooms and senior courtyard Exit through back doors on right of cafeteria

Staff Handbook

Appendix E – Emergency Evacuation Routes (Continued)

Main High School Building (Cont.)

Exit #10 – Main Gym

Boys' Locker Room - Exit through back doors on right of the Main Gym

Exit #9 – Main Gym

Girls' Locker Room – Exit through gym foyer doors

Exit #12 – Athletic Wing / Mini Gym

Rooms 610, 612, 614, 616 Exit left out of room, turn right and then turn left; exit door by mini gym

Boys' and Girls' Locker Rooms - Exit left out of room and through outside door

Rooms 611, 613 and 615 Exit right out of room, turn right and then turn left. Exit door by mini gym

Room 300 (mini gym), weight room, Athletic Dir. Office, Coaches' Rm. & Trainer's Rm. *Exit room, turn right and exit through outside door*

Rooms 301, 303 and 305 Exit right out of the room, proceed to athletic wing and turn left toward mini-gym and exit

Exit #16 – 200 wing / North by Math Office

Rooms 206, 208, 210, 212, 214 and 216 Exit right out the room; at end of hall, turn right and exit out back doors by Math Office

Rooms 205, 207, 209, 211, 213 and 215 Exit left out of room; at end of the hall, turn right and exit out back doors by Math Office

Exit #17 – 200 wing / South by Science Office

Rooms 122, 124, 126, 128, 201, 203 and girls' and boys' rest rooms *Exit right out of room; exit via back doors*

Rooms 202 and 204 - Exit left out of room; exit via back doors by Science Office

Rooms 601, 603, 605, 607 and 609 Exit left out of room, turn left at end of corridor; exit back doors by Science Office

Staff Handbook

Appendix E – Emergency Evacuation Routes (Continued)

Main High School Building (Cont)

Exit #18 – Mid 100 Corridor / Doors to PAC

Rooms 600, 602, 604, 606, 608 and girls' restroom Exit right out of room; turn right at end of corridor; turn left and exit doors toward PAC

Rooms 114, 116, 118 and 120 Exit left out of room; turn left and exit doors toward PAC

Rooms 117, 119, 121, 123 and boys' restroom Exit right out of room; turn left and exit doors toward PAC

Performing Arts Center

Exit #P6 – Back of building,	facing athletic practice fields
Room 707 (Band) -	Exit left out of room and then out back door

Rest Rooms – Exit right out of room and then out back door

Exit #P5 – Back of building, facing athletic practice fields Room 716 (Orchestra) – *Exit back of room left and then immediately to outside*

Room 719 (Chorus) – Exit right into hallway and proceed through doors to outside

Exit #P2 – Front of building, facing Greenough Road Rooms 731 (Drama) and 726 (Set Construction) – *Exit immediately to outside*

Exit #P1 – Front of building, facing Greenough Road Rooms 702 and 703 (Offices) – *Exit right and leave through front doors*

Tech Room – Exit down front stairs to lobby and out through the front doors

Auditorium – Exit via the nearest marked exit as directed by signs in the auditorium

Modular Classrooms 1, 2, 3 and 4 –

Exit via classroom doors to the outside and proceed across the bus road to fields

Staff Handbook

Appendix F – Progressive Discipline Plan

	Phones/iPods	Dress Code	Hats	Inappropriate Hallway Behavior
Policy	May be used outside the classroom. Not to be used in a classroom or any academic setting without teacher permission.	See District Policy on Student Dress Code JICA	See District Policy on Student Dress Code JICA	Speak and act with respect toward all. (OWLS)
Tier 1 – Infraction 1	Teacher: • Issue Warning • Assign Teacher Detention if Needed • Notify Parent	Teacher: • Notify Admin Office via Email Administration will find student and require a change of	Teacher: • Issue Warning • Require Removal • Assign Teacher Detention if Needed • Notify Parent	Teacher/Hall Monitor: • Issue Warning • Notify Admin Office • Write Discipline Referral if
Tier 2 – Infraction 2	Teacher:• NotifyAdminOffice viaEmail• Notify Parent• Meet withAcademicDean tocreate actionplan and toreview stepsalready taken• AcademicDean mayalsoconfiscatephone, assignadmindetention, etc.	clothes Teacher: Notify Admin Office via Email Administration will find student and ask them to get a change of clothes	Teacher:• Notify Admin Office via Email• Meet with Academic Dean to create action plan and to review steps already taken• Academic Dean may also Confiscate hat and bring to Admin Office, assign admin detention, etc.	Egregious Teacher/Hall Monitor: • Notify Admin Office • Write Discipline Referral Assistant Principal: • Assign Admin detention

Staff Handbook

	Phones/iPods	Dress Code	Hats	Inappropriate Hallway Behavior
Tier 3 –	Teacher:	Teacher:	Teacher:	Teacher/Hall Monitor:
Infraction	Notify	Notify	Notify	Notify
3 and	Admin	Admin	Admin	Admin
Additional	Office via	Office via	Office via	Office
Infractions	Email	Email	Email	Write
	Notify Parent	Assistant Principal:	• Update	Discipline
	• Update	• Assign	Academic	Referral
	Academic	Admin	Dean	Assistant Principal:
	Dean	Detention	Academic	Assign
	Academic Dean may	Require	Dean may	Admin
	refer to Assistant	Change of	refer to	Detention
	Principal	Clothing	Assistant	 Progressive
	_	 Progressive 	Principal	Escalation to
	Assistant Principal:	Escalation to	Assistant Principal:	Sat detention
	 Progressive 	Sat Detention	Confiscate	and
	Escalation to	and	hat and bring	suspension
	Sat Detention	Suspension	to Admin	
	and		Office	
	Suspension		 Assign 	
			Admin	
			Detention	
			 Progressive 	
			Escalation to	
			Sat Detention	
			and	
			Suspension	

Appendix F – Progressive Discipline Plan (Continued)

Staff Handbook

	Inappropriate Classroom Behavior	Classroom Disturbance (Student Removed from Class)	Tardy to Class (TU10)	Unverified Absence from Class (Class Cut or TU)
Policy	Speak and act with respect toward all. (OWLS)	Speak and act with respect toward all. (OWLS)	Students are expected to be to class on time. SH 22 & 61	Students are expected to attend every scheduled class. SH 20-24
Tier 1 – Infraction 1	Teacher: • Issue warning • Assign teacher detention if needed • Notify parent	Teacher: • Send student to hallway • follow up conference with student in hallway • Return to class with student if possible • Assign teacher detention if needed • Notify parent	Teacher: • Issue warning • May assign teacher detention	Teacher: • Check daily attendance report to confirm unverified absence (s) • Conference with student regarding student's absence • Assign teacher detention • Notify parent

Appendix F – Progressive Discipline Plan (Continued)

Timberlane Regional High School

Policies & Procedures

Staff Handbook

Appendix F – Progressive Discipline Plan (Continued)

	Inappropriate Classroom Behavior	Classroom Disturbance (Student Removed from Class)	Tardy to Class (TU10)	Unverified Absence from Class (Class Cut or TU)
Tier 2 –	Teacher:	Teacher:	Teacher:	Teacher:
Infraction 2	 Notify parent Assign teacher detention Write discipline referral if egregious Meet with Academic Dean to create action plan and to review steps already taken Academic Dean may also have meeting with student or give a Admin detention 	 Send student to hallway Follow Up conference with student in hallway Notify parent Write discipline referral Meet with Academic Dean to create an action plan and review steps already taken. Academic Dean may assign Admin detention 	 Issue warning May assign a teacher detention Notify parent 	 Check daily attendance report to confirm unverified absences Conference with student regarding student's absences Assign teacher detention Notify parent Meet with Academic Dean to create an action plan to review steps already taken

Staff Handbook

Appendix F – Progr	acciva Diccin	ling Plan (Continued)
Appendix r – riogr	essive Discip	nne i ian (Commueu)

	Inappropriate Classroom Behavior	Classroom Disturbance (Student Removed from Class)	Tardy to Class (TU10)	Unverified Absence from Class (Class Cut or TU)	
Tier 3 –	Teacher:	Teacher:	Teacher:	Teacher:	
Infraction 3 and Additional Infractions	 Notify Parent Write discipline referral Academic Dean: Collect, review, and forward discipline referral to Assistant Principal Assign consequences based on code of discipline 	 Send student to hallway Follow up conference with student in hallway Notify Admin Office Write discipline referral Academic Dean: Provide support for teacher when called Collect, review, and forward discipline referral to Assistant Principal Assistant Principal: Assign consequences based on code of discipline 	 Assign teacher detention for tardies 3, 4, and 5 Notify parent by tardy 5 Notify Academic Dean for tardies 6, 7, and 8 Write discipline referral for tardies 9+ to Assistant Principal Academic Dean: Assign admin detentions for tardies 6, 7, and 8 Collect, review, and forward discipline referral to Assistant Principal Assistant Principal: Progressive escalation to Sat detention and suspension 	 Check daily attendance report to confirm unverified absences Conference with student regarding student's absences Notify parent Update the Academic Dean who may assign admin detentions Assistant Principal Assign admin detention Progressive escalation to Sat. detention and suspension 	

Staff Handbook

Appendix G – Timeline for Grades 2016-2017

First Quarter		
Progress Reports Close	September	30
Progress Reports due - 7:30 a.m.	October	4
Parent/Teacher Conferences	October	13
First Quarter Ends	November	
Grades due - 7:30 a.m.	November	9
Deadline for Incomplete Grades	November	22
Second Quarter		
Progress Reports Close	December	9
Progress Reports due - 7:30 a.m.	December	13
Second Quarter Ends	January	18
Grades due - 7:30 a.m.	January	24
Deadline for Incomplete Grades	February	7
Third Quarter		
Progress Reports Close	February	17
Progress Reports due - 7:30 a.m.	February	21
Parent/Teacher Conferences	March	16
Third Quarter ends	March	31
Grades due - 7:30 a.m.	April	4
Deadline for Incomplete Grades	April	18
Fourth Quarter		
Progress Reports Close May		
Progress Reports due - 7:30 a.m.	May	9
Fourth Quarter ends June		
(Grades due, no Incomplete Grades)	June	16

Staff Handbook

Appendix H – Scheduled Meeting Dates

Faculty Meetings 2:30-3:30 – First Monday of Each Month

September 6th (**Tuesday Following Labor Day**) October 3rd (**Cancelled, using the hour on Monday, September 26th**) November 7th December 5th January 3rd (**Tuesday**) February 6th March 6th April 3rd May 1st June 5th

Department Meetings: 2:30-3:30 – Third Monday of Each Month or Designated Tuesday

September 19th October 17th November 21st December 19th January 17th (**Tuesday**) February 20th March 20th April 17th May 15th

Staff Handbook

Appendix I – Emergency Procedures

- **FIRE** the lights on the alarm boxes will flash and the horn will sound:
 - Direct students out of the classroom and leave it **unlocked**.
 - Take the **emergency backpack** by the door with you.
 - Shut the door behind you. Leave the lights on.
 - Follow the **emergency exit route** that is **posted in the room**. (If there is none, proceed to the nearest exit.)
 - Collect the class outside and **take attendance** to verify for missing or extra students. Make a **list of any missing or extra students** on the attached sheet. **Submit your list** to the nearest administrator. Hold up a green card if all your students are accounted for. **Hold up a red card if you are missing a student or have an extra student with you.** Cards are found in your backpack.
 - Wait for further instructions.
- LOCKDOWN an announcement will be made that we are "in a lockdown":
 - Immediately gather any hallway students into your classroom.
 - Close the **door lock** it if possible.
 - Pull down the shades and cover the window on the classroom door.
 - Shut off the lights.
 - If possible, have students move to where they are not visible from the door.
 - Ignore fire alarms unless you actually see smoke or fire.
 - Wait for further instructions.
- **EVACUATION** an announcement will be made to evacuate to another location. (This announcement may come either inside or outside.)
 - If the announcement comes during class time, follow all of the procedures listed above under Fire.
 - Once outside, teachers will direct students to the following locations:
 - Freshmen Performing Arts Center Auditorium (upper sections)
 - Sophomores Middle School Gym
 - Juniors Performing Arts Center Auditorium (lower sections)
 - Seniors Middle School Cafeteria
 - Teachers should join the group of students that form a majority of the class they are currently teaching.
 - Unassigned teachers should help to move students to their designated location. Once that has been accomplished, unassigned teachers are to report to the Band Room in the PAC to await further assignment.
 - Wait for further instructions.

Anytime we leave the building due to a fire or evacuation emergency, teachers are asked to gather stray students in bathrooms and other common areas along their exit route and to note and report any unusual circumstances.

Staff Handbook

Appendix J – Academic Protocol for Concussed Students

A student who has been determined to present with symptoms of a concussion will fall under the guidance of the academic protocol for concussed students. Concussions vary in degrees of severity, so it is best to address each student's needs on a case by case basis. However, in each case, the following academic protocol should be followed:

The Academic Protocol for Concussed Students:

- 1. The nurse will inform teachers of the student's initial concussion and the length of the recommended rest period. Teachers will also receive information on symptoms of a concussion.
- 2. During the "rest period" the concussed student's absences will be considered "exempt." All other absences related to the student's concussion will also be considered "exempt."
- 3. Teachers will defer missed daily assignments until the student is medically cleared to return to an appropriate level of academic participation. If an essential summative assignment(s) takes place during this time or during an extended period related to the concussion, the teacher will make accommodations for the student to make up the assignment(s).
- 4. Upon the student's return to school, the nurse will encourage the student to check in with her for ongoing assessment. This "check in" should take place daily. The student will continue to be monitored in this way for the time period he or she is exhibiting concussive symptoms.
- 5. The nurse and the student's guidance counselor, teachers, and/or trainer will periodically communicate with one another on the concussed student's status. Each student's needs will be considered on a case by case basis.
- 6. The severity of a student's symptoms as determined by a healthcare provider's assessment will help to determine the types of academic supports that are put into place. The counselor may refer the student for eligibility of 504 or special education at any time in the process. When the student continues to exhibit ongoing symptoms beyond 60 days, the guidance counselor will refer the student for consideration of eligibility for a Section 504 Plan or possible referral for a special education evaluation. If found eligible for 504 or an IEP, the 504 or IEP team will determine the accommodations that are required in order for the student to access his/her educational program. The 504 or IEP team will determine future interventions until such time as the team determines that the concussive injury can be effectively managed by the school nurse in consultation with other officials.

Staff Handbook

Appendix J – Academic Protocol for Concussed Students (Continued)

- 7. For the students who have suffered an injury and who are not placed on a 504 plan or IEP, notification of injury and subsequent clearance will be initiated through the nurse's office to teachers, counselors, advisors, coaches, trainers and administrators.
- 8. If the concussion and/or the recovery period extend through a grading period, the student's teachers will be instructed by the guidance counselor to assign an "Incomplete" for a grade in the course. The length of the incomplete period will be determined on a case by case basis.
- 9. Once the student has been determined ready to return to a regular academic work schedule by the nurse and/or trainer, he/she is to complete missed essential work and turn it into the teacher for assessment. As appropriate, the teacher is encouraged to differentiate the assessments or assignment(s) to allow the student an opportunity to demonstrate proficiency.